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lndependent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements

To the Board of Directors of Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Yünsa Yünlü
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together wili be referred ta as the ‘Group)
as et December 31, 2015 and the related consolidated statement of profıt or loss, consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards and for such internal controls as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that eve free trom materia$ misstatement, whether due to error andlor fraud.

Independent auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing as issued by the Capital
Markets Board of Turkey and Auditing Standards which are part of the Turkish Auditing Standards as
issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority. Those standards require that
ethical requirements are complied with and that the independent audit is planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Independent audit involves performing independent audit procedures ta obtain independent audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The independent audit
pracedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error and/or freud. in making those
risk assessments, the Companys intemal control system la takan into consideration. Our purpose,
however, is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system, butto design
independent audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances in order to identify the
relation between the financial statements prepared by the Group and its internal control system. Our
independent audit includes alsa evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s management, as weli as evaluating
the overali presentation of the fınancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our independent audit is suftcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

in aur opinian, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairiy, in ali material
respects, the financial position of Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. and its subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2015 and their financial perfarmance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards.

Matter of emphasis

Without qualifying our opinion, we want ta draw yaur attention to the Note 36 af the accampanying
cansalidated financial statements. As it is separateiy stated in Note 36 in 2015, during the tax
inspectian regarding to the caiculation of carporate tax for the year 2010, tax specialist levied a tax
principal and fine ata total amaunt of TL 2.741.119 on the ground that losses related to the liquidation
of a subsidiary, which was used by the Campany as deductian fram corporate tax base, cannat be the
subject af deductian. The Company management explains in Note 36 af the fınancial statements that
there is no need to require making provisians in fınancial statements since the Campany is planning to
bring a iawsuit for the afarementioned issue and it is not expecting ta make payment with respect ta
this issue.

Reports on other responsibilities arising from regulatory requirements

1> Auditors’ repart on Risk Management System and Committee prepared in accardance with
paragraph 4 of ArUcie 398 of Turkish Cammercial Cade (“TCC”) 6102 is submitted ta the Baard
of Directars af the Company an February 26, 2016.

2) in accordance with paragraph 4 of Article 402 af the TCC, na signiflcant matter has came ta aur
attentian that causes us ta believe that the Campany’s bookkeeping activities far the periad
January 1 — December 31, 2015 and financial statements are not in compliance with the cade
and pravisions af the Campany’s articles af assaciatian in relation ta fınancial reporting.

3) ln accordance with paragraph 4 af Article 402 af the TCC, the Baard af Directars submitted ta
us the necessary explanations and pravided required dacuments within the cantext af audit.

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Ananim Şirketi
A memberffrğf5fErst a Yaung Global Limited

.— .

Mefin
Partner irrcba£gg--

February 26, 2016
Istanbul, Türkiye
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(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of financial position
as of December 31, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

Current year Prior year
(Audited) (Audited)

December 31, December3l,
Notes 2015 2014

Assets

Current assets 218.891.659 223.927.699

Cash and cash equivalents 6 4.015.374 13.058.543
Trade receivables 8 96.257.454 122.606.700
- Trade mceivabies fmm m!atedpadies 7 - 2.282
- Other irade receivables 8 96.257.454 122.604.418

Other receivables 9 1.745.506 1.750.096
Inventory 10 103.466.663 73.996.201
Prepaid expenses 12 1.730.914 2.281.188
Otherfınancial assets 22 1.516.756 3.805.171
Other current assets 22 10.1 58.992 6.429.800

Non-current assets 69.154.092 69.016.215

Tangible assets 14 50.239.535 53.324.060
Intangibleassets 15 14.058.379 11.884.206
Prepaidexpenses 12 192.102 41.745
Deferred tax asset 31 4.664.076 3.766.204

Total assets 288.045.751 292.943.914

Consolidated fınancial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, were approved by
the Board of Directors on February 26, 2016.

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes are the integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of financial position
as of December3l, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otheıwise indicated)

Current year Prior year
(Audited) (Audited)

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2015 2014

Liabilities

Shortterm Liabilitles 191.425.243 182.415.003

Financial Iiabilities 18 146.455.399 129.320.430
Trade payables 8 36.436.729 43.022.855
- Trade payables ta related partles 7 363.958 40.089
- Other tmde payables 8 36.072. 771 42.982.766
Deferred income 9 861.935 870.748
Other financial Iiabilities 22 792.772 92.657
Short-term Iiabilities for employee benefıts 21 5.269.766 6.449.686
Short-term provisions for employee beneflts 21 - 1.050.000
Other current Iiabilities 22 1 .608.642 1 .498.347
Income taxes payables 31 - 111.080

Long-term Iiabilities 1 2.052.495 8.631.508

Long term provisions for employment benefıts 21 12.052.495 8.631.508

Shareholders’ eguity 84.568.013 101.896.603

Paid-in share capital 23 29.160.000 29.160.000
Infiation adjustment 30.657.866 30.657.866
Share premium 92.957 92.957
Other comprehensive income and expenses not to be

reclassifıed to accumulated profıt or Ioss (3,105,162> (601.462)
Other comprehensive income and expenses to be

reciassifled to accumulated profıt or Ioss 1.187.050 3.410.007
Restricted reserves 21.436.111 6.859.011
Retained earnings 245.124 245.124
Net profıt for the current year 32 4.894.067 32.073.100

Total Iiabilities and eguity 288.045.751 292.943.914

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, were approved by
the Board of Directors on February 26, 2016.

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes are the integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
(2)



(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
fortheyearended December3l, 2015
(Amounts expressed in of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

Earnings per share
Weighted-average number of outslanding shares
(1 share equals to Kr 1 valued shares)

0,0017
2.916.000.000

Prior year
(Audited)

January 1-
December3l 2014

0,0110
2.916.000.000

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December
the Board of Directors on February 26, 2016.

31, 2015, were approved by

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes are the integral part of the consolidated fınancial statements.

Notes

Current year
(Audited)

January 1-
December 31, 2015

Continuing operations

Revenue (net) 24 263.695.342 319.058.534
Cost of sales (-) 25 (205.151.059) (244.295.879)

Gross profit 58.544.283 74.762.655

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (-) 26 (30.109.434) (36.862.139)
General adminiştrative expense (-) 26 (14.432.196) (11.383.280)
Research and development expenses (-) 26 (1.149.807) (1.425.498>
Otheroperating income 27 21.214.758 14.011.308
Other operating expenses (-) 27 (7.368.048) (11.244.135)

Operating profıt 26.699.556 27.858.908

Income trom investment activities 27 1.077.678 19.463.629
Financial expenses (-) 29 (22.557.408) (12.472.435)

Operating profit Defore bx 5.219.826 34.850.102

Operafing tax expense 31 (325.759) (2.777.002)

Taxation on e<pense for the current year - (3.597.717)
Deferred tax (expense) / income (325.759) 820.715

Net income for the year from conünuing operations 4.894.067 32.073.100

(3)



(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2015
(Amounts expressed in Df Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

Current year Prior year
(Audited) (Audited)

January 1 — January 1 —

December 31, December 31,
Note 2015 2014

Net Income 4.894.067 32.073.100

Other comprehensive income:

Accumulated other comprehensive incomel(expense) not to
be reciassifled to profıt or Ioss (2.503.700) <552.167)

Actuarial Ioss 21 (3.129.625) (690209)

-Deferred tax income 31 625925 138.042

Accumulated ather comprehensive incomel(expense) to be
reclassifıed to profit or loss (2.222.957) 9.639.882

Cash flow hedge (Iosses)/gains (2.988.530) 12.107.268

Foreign exchange conversion gain/(Ioss) 167.867 <45.932)

- Deferred tax income/(expense) 31 597.706 (2,421.454)

Total comprehensive income 167.410 41.160.815

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes are the integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(4)
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the yearended December3l, 2015
(Amounts expressed in of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

Current year Prior year
(Audited) (Audited)

January 1 - January 1 -

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net profıt 32 4894.067 32.073.100
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortisation 14,15,28 12.986.312 12.358.347
Deferred tax expense / <income) 31 325.759 (820.715)
Income tax expense 31 - 3.597.717
Provision for employment termination benefıts 21 5.788.300 3.373,496
Provisions for short-term employee benefits 21 (1.179.920) 2.289.036
Interest income (5.459) (25.089)
Interest expense 9.496.337 8.709.619
Gam on sale of property, plant and equipment (1.077.678> <19.463.629)
Rediscount on receivables 7,8 570.030 11.666
Rediscount on payables 7,8 39.515 (232.567)
Change in inventory provisions 10 (2.319.018> 2.402.380
Income accruals 9 (1.690.417) <1.656.935)

Net cash provided by operating actlvities before changes in working
capital flow 27.828.128 42.586.426

Trade receivables 25.779.216 (14.063.315)
Inventories <27.151.444) (13.441.501)
Prepaid expeses 550.274 <743.872)
Other current assets (3.315.977) <464.503)
Othernon-current assets (150.357) 251.274
Trade payables (6.625.941) 16.050.269
Other current liabilities 306.599 1.731.920

Net cash pravided by operating actlvltles after changes in working
capital flow 17.220.498 31.936.698

Taxes paid 31 (234.964) (3.486.637)
Employment termination benefiis paid 21 (5.496.938) (2.431.282)
Accrued expenses paid 21 (1.050.000) <783.000>

Net cash provided from operating activities 10.438.596 25.235.779

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 <5.497.456) (17.730.680>
Purchase of intangible assets 15 (6.589.188) (6.414.088>
Proceeds from sales of tangible and intangible assets 1.088.362 20.600.660
Cash in-flows from government incentives 1.368.425 288.226
Interest received 5.459 25.089

Net cash used in investment activities <9.624.398) (3.230.793)

Cash flows used in financing activities
Changes in borrowings 16.708.249 10.631.659
Dividends paid (17.496.000) (13.413.600>
Interest paid (9.069.616) (6.919.086>

Net cash used in financing activities (9.857.361) <9.701.027)

Net (decrease )İincrease in cash and cash equivalents <9.043.169) 12.303.959
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 6 13.058.543 754.584

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6 4.015.374 13.058.543

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes are the integral part of the consolidated fınancial statements.

(6)



(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL> unless otherwise indicated>

1. Group’s Organisation and nature of operations

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (named as “Group”), Yünsa
Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. is the parent company, which owns/controls the majority of the shares,
consists of four subsifdiaries.

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Company°) was established in June 21, 1973.
The Company was established for the manufacturing, marketing and selling wool textile products.
Company’s main shareholder is Hacı Ömer Sabancı Holding A.Ş. The shares of the Group’s main
shareholder are quoted on Borsa Istanbul A. Ş. and traded in the national market.

As of December 31, 2015 average number of personnel is 1.539 (December 31, 2014: 1.750).

The Company iş registered in Turkey and the address of the registered offlce is Sabancı Center
Kule 2. 34330 4.Levent, Istanbul.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s in scope of consolidation
as subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”), directly and indirectly with the business of the capital shares are
as follows:

December 31, 2015 and 2014
Direct Indirect

Ownership Ownership
Ratio Ratio

Subsidiaries % % Field of Activity

Yünsa Germany Gmbh 100 100 Marketing-Sales
Yünsa taha SRL 100 100 Fabric Design
Yünsa UK Limited 100 100 Marketing-Sales
Yünsa USA lnc. 100 100 Marketing-Sales

Dividends paid

Group dividend payment made in the current period was TL 17.496.000. (2014- 13.413.600 TL)

Dividend equals to 1 TL nominal value share 5 0,0060 Kr. (2014— 0,0046 Kr.).

Aporoval of the financial statements:

The fınancial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on
February 26, 2016.

(7)



(Convenience translation into english of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Sipnifıcant Accounting Policies

The financial statements and disciosures have been prepared in accordance with the cammuniqu
numbered 11-14,1 “Cammuniqu on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (the
CommuniquĞ) announced by the Capital Markets Baard (“0MB”) (hereinafter wilI be referred ta as the
CMB Reparting Standards”) on June 13, 2013 which is pubhshed on Oftcial Gazette numbered
28676. in accordance with article 5th af the 0MB Reporting Standards, companies should apply
Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (TAS/TFRS) and interpretations
regarding these standards as adopted by the PubHc Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Autharity of Turkey (aPOK).

The Company keeps its books in Turkish Lira (TL) pursuant to the commercial and financial
reguJations effective in Turkey and the pravisians of the Uniform Chart af Accounts (UCA) pramulgated
by the Ministry of Finance. The financial statements are based on the legal records of the Company
and expressed in TL based in historical cost except for derivative financial instruments which are
measured at fair value and prepared after being subject to certain adjustments and ciassifications in
order ta fairly present the financial positian of the Company in accardance wit the 0MB Accaunting
Standards.

Functional Currency

The financial statements of each company af the Group have been presented in the currency
prevailing in the basic economic enviranment in which they aperate (functianal currency). The financial
positian and results of operatians of each campany have been denaminated in TL which is the
prevailing currency af the Company and the presentation currency for the cansalidated financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the functianal currency of the Graup’s subsidiaries is Eura and
US Dallars respectively, and the reparting currency is TL. The translatian differences resulting (mm
these cansalidated subsidiaries are included in the foreign currency translation differences account
under equity.

Basis of consolidation

The cansalidated financial statements are cantrolled by the Company or include jointly contralled
entitys financial statements. Control of an entity so as to abtain benefits from its activities an the
financial and operational policies that are pravided with the power ta contral.

The results of the acquired ar disposed subsidiaries during the year,are included in the consolidated
statement of income, after the date of acquisitian am up to the date af dispasal. If necessary, the
financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been changed, in order ta apply the same
accaunting policies within the Group. Ali intra-group transactions, balances. income and expenses are
eliminated on cansotidatian.

In net assets of consalidated subsidiaries ta minodty interests (non-controlling interest) are identifıed
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minarity shares consist of the first business combinations
that occur in these shares from the date of the merger with the changes in equity of the minarity
interests of the amaunt.

When a company purchased by the Group, the assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, are
measured at fair value as of the date of acquisitian. Minority share is obtained by calculating the fair
values of assets and liabilities in the ratio of non contralling interests. The operating results of the
subsidiaries acquired or dispased during the period. are included in the cansalidated statement of
income, starting fram the date of acquisition ar up ta the date of the sale.
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

in the event the Company’s purchase payment price is over the vaiue of the underiying net assets,
goodwill arises during the consolidation. After reassessment, the acquired companys assets, liabilities
and contingent Iiabilities of the Group’s share in the net fair value exceeds the costs associated with
business cambinations, the excess amount is recognized in the income statement.

Changes in the share capital of the Group’s existing subsidiaries are:

in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that da not result in Ioss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions changes. The Group’s shares of non-controlling share of the book vaue of
subsidiaries are adjusted to reflect changes in share.Non-controlling interests are adjusted by the
ditference between the amount of the consideration paid or received and the fair vaiue, are accounted
directly in equity asa share of the Group.

in case of the Group’s ioss of the control of a subsidiary, after sales profit / Ioss, i) with the sum of the
sales price and the remaining share of the fair value ii) the subsidiarys assets (including goodwili) and
liabilities and non-controiiing share of the previous carrying amount of the difference between is
caicuiated.The subsidiary’s assets valuation at fair vaiue and revalued amounts and in case of the
accounting of the reiated cumuiative gam / Ioss in other comprehensive income recognition and
accumulated in equity, in case of other comprehensive income previousiy recognized in equity and
coiiected amounts, are recorded by the accounting methods to be used on the assumption that the
Company has soid reiated assets. (e.g., in accordance with the relevant IFRS standards, profit / bas
transfer or transfers directiy to retained earnings).

After the subsidiary’s sale, the fair value of date of the remaining investment’s boss of control, TAS 39
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement standards identified under the initial accounting
for the fair vaiue or as in appiicable cases where a subsidiary or a jointly controlled business
investment is considered as the cost vaiue in initiai recognition.

2.2 Change in accounting poiicies

The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated flnanciai statements as at
December 31 2015 are consistent with those of the previous fınancial year. except for the adoption of
new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of January 1, 2015. The effects of
these standards and interpretations on the Group’s fınancial position and performance have been
disciosed in the related paragraphs.

i) The new standards. amendments and interpretations which are effective as at Januarv 1,
2015 are as follows:

TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Empioyee Contributions (Amendment)

TAS 19 requires an entity to considercontributions from empboyees orthird partieswhen accounting
for defıned benefit plans. The amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contributions is
independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions
as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the service is rendered, instead of ailocating
the contributions to the periods of service. The amendment did not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Annual Improvements to IASIIFRSs

in September 2014, Public Oversight Authority (POA) issued the below amendments to the standards
in relation ta “Annual lmprovements -2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual lmprovements -2011—2013
Cycle”.

Annual Improvements - 2010-2012 Cyc!e

TERS 2 Share-based Payment:

Definitions relating ta performance and seMce conditions which are vesting conditions are ciarifıed,
The amendment is effective prospectively.

TERS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifıes that alI contingent consideration arrangements ciassifled as Iiabilities (or
assets) arising from a business combination should be subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss whether or not they falI within the scope of TAS 39 (or TFRS 9, as applicable). The
amendment is effective for business combinations prospectively.

TERS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as follows: i) An entity must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in TFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to
assess whether the segments are similar’. ii) The reconciliatian of segment assets ta total assets is
only required to be disciosed if the reconciiiation is reported ta the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments ara eftective retraspectively.

TAS 16 Propedy, Piant and Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment to TAS 16.35(a) and TAS 3880(a) ciarifles that revaluation can be performed, as
faiiows:
i) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset ta market vaiue or ii) determine the market value of
the carrying amaunt and adjust the gross carrying amount proportionateiy sa that the resulting carrying
amount equals the market value. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment ciarifles that a management entity — an entity that pravides key management
personnel services — is a related party subject ta the related party disciasures. . In addition, an entity
that uses a management entity 5 required ta disclose the expenses incurred for management
services. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

Annual Improvements - 2011-2013 Cycle

TERS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifıes that: i) Joint arrangements are outside the scope of IFRS 3, not just joint
ventures ii> The scope exception applies only ta the accounting in the fınancial statements of the joint
arrangement itseif. The amendment is effective praspectively.
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 <continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL> unless otheıwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation af financial statements (confinued)

TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The portfolio exception in TFRS 13 can be applied to fınancial assets, fınancial Iiabilities and other
contracts within the scope of TAS 39 (or TFRS 9, as applicable). The amendment is effective
prospectively.

TAS 40 lnvestment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 in determining whether the
transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. The amendment is effective
prospectively.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

ii) Standards issued but not yet eftective and not early adopted:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective
up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements are as follows. The Group wiil make
the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which wili be affecting the consolidated fınancial
statements and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Ciassifıcation and measurement

As amended in December 2012 and February 2015, the new standard is eftective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permifted. Phase 1 of this new TFRS
introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring fınancial instruments. The amendments
made to TFRS 9 wilI mainiy affect the classifıcation and measurement of financial assets and
measurement of fair value option (FVO) liabiiities and requires that the change in fair vaiue of a FVO
financial liability attributable to credit risk is presented under other comprehensive income. The
amendments wiil not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

TFRS 11 Acquisition of an Interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

TFRS 11 is amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constitutes a business. This amendment requires the acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as defıned in TFRS 3 Business
Combinations, to apply ali of the principles on business combinations accounting in TFRS 3 and other
TFRS5 except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in this TFRS. in addition, the acquirer
shall disclose the information required by TFRS 3 and other TFRSs for business combinations. These
amendments are ta be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments wili not have an impact on the fınancial position or
performance of the Group.
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(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otheıwise indicated>

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued>

TAS 16 and TAS 38- Ciarifıcation of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38)

The amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38, have prohibited the use of revenue-based depreciation for
property, plant and equipment and signiflcantly limiting the use of revenue-based amortisation for
intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments wilI not have an impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 41 Agriculture (Amendment> — Bearer Plants

TAS 16 k amended to provide guidance that bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oli
palms should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment in TAS 16. Once a
bearer plant is mature, apart from bearing produce, its biological transformation is no longer signifıcant
in generating future economic beneflts. The only signifıcant future economic beneflts it generates come
from the agricultural produce that it creates. Because their operation 15 similar to that of manufacturing,
either the cost model or revaluation model should be applied. The produce growing on bearer plants wilI
remain within the scope of TAS 41, measured at fair value less costs to selI. Entities are required to
apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after January 1 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wilI not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale ör Contribuüon of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments>

In February 2015, amendments issued to TFRS 10 and TAS 28, to address the acknowledged
inconsistency between the requirements in TFRS 10 and TAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or a joint venture, to clarify that an investor recognises a
full gam or loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3,
between an investor and its associate or jomnt venture. The gam or loss resulting from the re
measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a former subsidiary should be recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interestş in that former subsidiary. An entity shall apply those
amendments prospectively to transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wilI not have
an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28: investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28>

In February 2015, amendments issued to TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28, to address the issues that
have arisen in applying the investnıent entities exception under TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements. The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016.
Eadier application is permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wilI not have an
impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issuad in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

TAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to TAS 1)

in February 2015, amendments issued to TAS 1. Those amendments include narrow4ocus
improvements in the foliowing fıve areas: Materiality, Disaggregation and subtotals, Notes structure,
Disclosure of accounting poiicies, Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) ahsing
from equity accounted investments. The amendments are applicabie for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1 2016. Eadier applicaüon is permitted. These amendments are not expected have
signifıcant impact on the notes to the consolidated fınancial statements of the Group.

Annual lmprovements tü TFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle

in February 2015, POA issued, Annual improvements to TFRSs 201 2-2014 Cycle. The document sets
out five amendments to four standards, excluding those standards that are consequentially amended,
and the reiated Basis for Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the amendments
are:

• TFRS 5 Non-ourrent Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations — ciarifles that changes in
methods of disposal (through saie or distribution to owners) would not be considered a new plan of
disposai, rather it sa continuation of the originai plan

• TFRS 7 Financiaİ İnstruments: Disclosures — clarifıes that i) the assessment of servicing contracts
that inciudes a fee for the continuing involvement of financiai assets in accordance with TFRS 7; ii)
the oftsetting disclosure requirements do not appiy to condensed interim financial statements,
unless such disciosures provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annuai report

• TAS 19 Empİoyea Benefits — clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obiigation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obiigation is located

• TAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting — ciarifles that the required interim disciosures must either be in
the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financiai
statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial report.

The amendments are effective for annuai periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016, with eariier
appiication permitted. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on
fınanciai position or performance of the Group.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the international
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by Pubiic Oversight Authority (POA)

The foiiowing standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financiai statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adaptedlissued by
the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Group wiil make the necessary changes ta its
consohdated fınanciai statements after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become
effective under TFRS.
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Annual Improvements - 2010-2012 Cycle

İFRS 13 Fair Vaive Measurement

As clarified in the Basis for Conclusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest
rates can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendment is
effective immediately.

Annual Improvements - 2011-2013 Cycle

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

in May 2014, the international Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The new five-step model in the standard provides the recognition and
measurement requirements of revenue. The standard applies to revenue from contracts with
customers and provides a model for the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the
entity’s ordinary activities (e.g., the sale of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). IFRS 15
original effective date was January 1, 2017. However, in September 2015, IASB decided ta defer the
effective date to reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.
Entities will transition ta the new standard following either a full retrospective approach ara modified
retrospective approach. The modified retrospective approach would allow the standard to be applied
beginning with the current period, with na restatement of the comparative periods, but additional
disclosures are required. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments - Final standard (2014)

In July 2014 the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments. The final version of
IFRS 9 brings together the classiflcation and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases
of the IASB’s project ta replace IAS 39 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9
is built on a logical, single classifıcation and measurement approach for financial asseta that reflects
the business model in which they are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built upon this is a
forward-looking expected credit loss model that wilI result in more timely recognition of oan losses and
is a single model that is applicable to alI financial instruments subject ta impairment accounting. In
addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so-called own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book gains
through profit or loss asa result of the value of their own debt falling due to a decrease in credit
worthiness when they have elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard alsa includes an
improved hedge accounting model to better link the economics of risk management with its accounting
treatment. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning onar after 1 January 2018. However, the
Standard is available for early application. In addition. the own credit ohanges can be early applied in
isolation without otherwise changing the accounting for financial instruments. The amendment is not
applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact on the fınancial position or perforniance of the
Group.
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otherwise indicated>

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued>

IFRS 16 Leases

in January 2016, the IASB has published a new standard, IFRS 16 ‘Leases. The new standard brings
most Jeases on-balance sheet for Iessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largeiy unchanged and the
distinction between operating and finance ieases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes AS 17 ‘Leases’ and
related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1 2019. with earher
adoption permitted it IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied. The
amendment is not applicable for the Group and wili not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

fAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Amendments>

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendments ta AS 12 income Taxes. The amendments clarify how
to account for deferred tax assets related ta debt instruments measured at fair value. The
amendments clarify the requirements an recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses, ta
address diversity in practice. These amendments are to be retrospectiveJy applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 11 2017 with earlier application permitted. However, on initial application
of the amendment, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative pedod may be
recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without
allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. if the
Group applies this relief, it shall disclose that faat. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and
wili not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. The amendments
are intended to clarify IAS 7 to improve information provided ta users of financial statements about an
entity’s financing activities. The improvements ta disclosures require companies ta provide information
about changes in their financing Iiabilities. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with eadier application permitted. When the Group first applies
those amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. The
amendment is not applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated flnanciai statements of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation ara
summarized below:

a) Revenue

Sales revenues are recorded on the basis of actualization of the delivery, the reliable calculation
of the revenue’s amount S the expected amount of the transaction-related economic benefıts
received or to be taken of the consideration over the fair value. inflow for the Group. Net sales,
sales returns. calculated after deduating discounts and commissions have been found.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Revenue from the proceeds of the sale of goods. is recognized when alI the foilowing conditions are
met:

• The transfer of the ali signiflcant dsks a rewards of the ownership to the buyer,
• The related ownership of the group 8 Iack of etfettive control over the goods sold of the

continuous managerial involvement.
• The reliable measurement of the revenue amount,
• Possible economic benefits associated with the transaction fiow to the entity,
• Incurred or expected incurred transaction costa must be measured reliabiy.

Retail sales are irade in cash or by credit card. Revenue recorded, including credit card processing
fees in gross amounts.

Other revenues earned by the Group, are recognized on the following basis:

Rent and royalty income - on accrual basis
Interest income - on the basis of the effective interest method
Dividend income - dividends in the period when the right to collect occurs

b) Related Parties

a> A person or a member of that person’s close famfly k related to the Company in the following
cases:

Concerned person’s;

(i) Having control or joint control over the company,
(ii) in case of having significant infiuence over the company,
(Oi) In case of being a member of the Company of Company’s main ownership’s key

management personnel,

b> If any of the foiiowing conditions are met, the entity is counted as related with the Company:

(i) ln case of, Entity a the Company are members of the same group.
(ii) In case of entity is another company’s subsidiary or joint venture (or in case of a

membership of a groups’ member)
(iii) In case of both the companies having a business partnership with the same third party,
(iv) One of the companies having a business partnership with a third party and the other

company is a subsidiary of of that third party,
(v) In case of having Entitys, Companys or the associated Companys employees having a

post-employment defined benefit plans (in case of Company has such a plan, the
sponsoring companies are also related with the Company.)

(vi> Company’s control or jointly controlled by a person identified in the article <a),
(vii> A person who is identified as in (a) articieat (i) part, in the presence of a significant

impact on a persons business or such entity (or of a parent of these businesses) in the
case of being a member of the key management personnel.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

c) Inventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of flxed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned ta inventories heid by the method most
appropriate ta the particular class of inventory. with the majority being valued on weighted average
basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price Iess alI estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make a sale. When the net realizable value of inventory is less than cost, the
inventory is written down to the net realizable value and the expense is included in statement of
income/(loss) in the period the write-down or loss occurred. When the circumstances that previously
caused inventories to be written down below cost na langer exist ar when there is clear evidence af an
increase in net realizable value because of changed econamic circumstances, the amount of the write
down is reversed. The reversal amount is limited ta the amount of the ariginal write-down.

d) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The fair value thraugh profıt or lass classifled as financial assets and the fair value af recagnized at fair
market value except those financial assets and purchase transactions directly attributable expenditure
for the total amaunt is recognized. in sccordance with the timeframe investment instruments,
established by the concerning market conditian of delivery that is cannected ta a contract as a result of
purchase or sale of fınancial assets and the related assets, are recognized ar are derecognized on the
trade date.

Financial assets are classifıed inta the fallowing specified categories: financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), held-ta-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets and ‘laans and receivables’. The classification depends an the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time af initial recognition.

The eective interest method

The eftective interest rate methad, is the calculation af the amartized cost af a financial asset and
distribution of the related interest income to the related periad. EffecUve interest rate is the rate for the
expected life of the financial instrument ar, if it is apprapriate, a sharter period af time af the tatal
estimated future cash receipts thraugh the related financial asset is the rate that exactly discounts ta
net present value. At fair value through profit or loss Financial assets are classifıed as financial assets
and the related income is calculated by using the effective interest methad.

Financial assets (hat am the reflections of the fok vatue through prof/t or tass

Financial assets Ihat are held for trading are the assets which reflect the fair value in the income
statement. A financiat asset for the purpase af selling in the short term, it is categorized under this
subject. Financial risk derivatives are designated as an effective protective instrument mentioned that
constitute the fair value of financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or loss are classified as financial
assets. Assets, in this categary, are classified as current assets.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued>

Financiai assets heid to maturİty

The Group’s intent and ability to hold to maturity, which is fıxed or determinable payments and fıxed
maturity debt instruments, are classified as investments heid to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are recorded at amortized cost using effective interest method less impairment and the related
revenue is calculated after deducting the effective interest method.

FinancialAssets avallable for saic

Available-for-sale financial assets are defined as (a) assets which are not held-to-maturity financial
assets” or (b) financial assets that are not fınancial assets heid for trading. Available-for-sale fınancial
assets are subsequently re-measured at fair value. When fair value calculations, based on market
prices, cannot be obtained reliably, the available-for-sale financial assets are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Profit and Ioss related to available-for-sale fınancial assets are
included in the income statement for the related period, The changes in fair value of these assets are
presented in equity accounts. In the case that the related asset is disposed of or impaired, the amount
in equity accounts is transferred to the income statement as profıVloss. lmpairment provisions, which
result from investments on equity instruments classifıed as available-for-sale financial assets and
which are recognized in the income statement cannot be derecognized from the income statement in
the subsequent periods. Except for equity instruments defined as available-for-sale, it the loss on
impairment decreases in the subsequent period and if this decrease is attributable to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment ioss, previously recognized impairment oss may be
derecognized in the income statement.

Borrowings and receivab!es

Trade and other receivables and Ioans with fixed or determinable payments that are not traded, are
classifled in this category. Loans are shown at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Iess
any impairment losses are measured.

İmpairments in financial assets

Financial asset are assessed at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of flnancial
assets is deemed to be impaired it, and oniy if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that had occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that Ioss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. For Ioans and receivables impairment loss has been incurred the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

Except for trade receivables, which is reduced through the use of an allowance account, impairment
on ali other financial assets are direotly written off in the related account. in case trade receivables
cannot be coBected, the related amount is written otf from aUowance account, The change in
allowance account is accounted in the income statement.

(18>



(Convenience translaüon into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

2. Sasis of presentation af financial statements <continued)

Except ready for sale equity instruments, if the impairment osses in next period decreases and the
decrease in impairment Ioss is recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss for
investment at the date the impairment is reversed, in case of the impairment have not been
recognized at any time. t is cancelled without exceeding the amortized cost, is reversed in the income
statement.

An increase, after the decrease in the fair vaue of ready to sale equity instruments, is directly
accounted in equity.

Cash and cash eguivaients

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments which their matudties are three months or iess from date of acquisition and readiiy
convertibie to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignifıcant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabiiities

The Group’s financial iiabilities and equity instruments, are classified according to the substance of
contractual arrangements, and based on the definitions of a financial Iiability and equity instrument.

lUs a financial instrument that represent the right of the remaining assets’ contract depending on the
equity, after deducting ali of the Group’s liabilities. Specific financial liabiiities and equity for the applied
accounting policies for financial instruments are stated below.

Financial Iiabiiities at fair value through proflt or loss or other fınancial iiabilities are classified as
financial Iiabilities.

Financial liabiİities concerning fair vaiue valuation difference pre fit er İoss

Financial liabiiities concerning fair value valuation difference profit er loss, is recorded at (air value
and in every report period it is revaiued as of balance sheet date vaiue. The change in the (air value
is accounted in the income statement.The net gam er asa recognized in income statement, stated
fmnancial liabilities include the amount of interest paid.

Other Financial Liabilities

Other fınancial liabiiities. including borrowings, net of transaction costs are accounted for at fair value.
Other financial Iiabiiities are subsequently calculated on the effective interest rate method, with interest
expense using the effective interest is recognized st amortized cost.

The eftective interest rate method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period to the period related.

The eftective interest rate is the rate for the expected life of the fınancial instrument or, if appropriate, a
shorter period of time, the estimated future cash payments net present value of the related financiat
liabihties is the rate that discounts.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The group’s activities, mainly due ta changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which is
exposed ta fınancial risks. Group, on specifıc binding commitments and forecasted exchange rate
fluctuations depending to transactions to hedge its fınancial risks associated with derivative fınancial
instruments (primarily foreign currency forward contracts) are used.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. Derivative fınancial
instruments are calculated at fair value on the contract date and it is recalculated using the (air value in
subsequent reporting periods.

Future cash flows are determined as hedging derivatives that are active on this issue and the changes
in the fair value of the ineftective portion directly in equity is recognized directly in income statement.

The groups bounding commitments to foreign exchange risk protection policy, classifies the stated
risk as a cash flow hedge. in the recognition of an asset or Iiability that do not result in hedging
transactions, in the periods that the amounts in equity affects the hedged item’s the income statement,
are recognized in the income statement. The derivative financial instruments that da not meet the
requirements for changes for the hedging acoounting, are recorded in income statement when they
create a fair value change.

Financial hedge accounting is conctuded when the hedging instrument usage period expired, said or
used, or the requirements for hedge accounting could not meet the case.Cumulative gam or oss
arising from hedging instrument at the related period wili be booked ta equity until the expected
gain/loss transaction to be completed. If a hedged transaction does not occur, the net cumulative gam
or loss recognized in equity, is recorded as profit or Ioss for the period.

e) Tangible assets

Tangible assets are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment ioss if
exists. Depreciation is provided over adjusted costs on a straight-tine basis over the economic useful
lives. Since lands are considered as ta have an indefınite useful life, they are not subject ta
depreciation.

The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which approximate the economic useful
lives of such assets, are as follows:

Years

Land and and improvements 10-25
Buildings 25-50
Machinery, plant and eguipment 4-12
Motor vehicles 5
Furniture and fixtures 3-10
Specific costs 5 or less than lease term
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Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued>
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Resulting from disposal of tangible assets or tangible assets withdrawn from service, the sales
proceeds and the gam or loss determined as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
are included in the income statement.

The impairment test iş performed when the book value of the assets that are subject to amortization, is
not possible to recoverThe provision for impairment is recorded if the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the obtained fair value after deducting the cost of
sales or is the greater value in use. in order to evaluate the impairrnent, the assets are grouped at the
Iowest levels (cash generating units) where there are seperately identifıable cash fiows. Non-fınancial
assets that are subject to impairment, are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at every
reporting period.

Property, plant maintenance and repair expenses incurred, are recognized as expenses.The
investment spendings that increase the future benefıts by increasing the capacity of the tangible assets,
are added to cost of tangible assets.

1) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise acquired intellectual property and computer software. They are recorded at
acquisition cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic lives for a period
not exceeding 5 years from the date of acquisition. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of any intangible asset is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount.

Intema/İy generated intangible assets and research and development expenses

Research expenses are recorded in the income statement in the incurred period.

Resulting from development activities (or lntra-group’s project at the development phase) internally
generated intangible assets are oniy recognized when the following conditions are alI met:

• technical possibility to completion of the intangible assets readiness for use or ta seli,
• having intention to seli, operate or completion of intangible assets.
• intangible assets that can be used or soid,
• how the asset would generate probable future economic benefits to be certain,
• The existence of the required appropriate technical, financial and other resources in order to

complete the development of intangible assets, use or selI. The development cost of the asset
during the development process to be measured in a reliable way.

Amount of internaliy generated intangible assets, consist of the intangible assets that meet the
requirements of the above mentioned recognition from the moment the totat amount of the expenditure
is composed. When internally generated intangible assets are not recorded, development expenditure
iş recognized as an expense in the period in which they create.

After initial recognition, the internaliy-generated intangible assets are shown as like the purchased
separateiy intangible assets. after reducing the accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. These assets ara amortized within 5 years.
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Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

g) Borrowing costs

in the case of the assets that are ready for use a sale, are subject to a considerable time seeking
(qualifying assets) the attributabie borrowing costs are direatiy invoived in cost of the asset until the
related asset is ready for use or seti.

Ali other borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement in the period they occur.

h) Corporate income taxes

Turkish tax legisiation does not permit to file a consolidated tax preparation ta parent company and its
subsidiary, as refleoted in the accompanying financial statements, the tax provision is caiculated
separateiy based on each company.

Income tax expense consists of the sum of current tax and deferred tax expense.

Current Tax

Current year tax Iiability is calculated over the part of the taxable profit. There are differences in the
income statement. because of it excludes taxabie profit, taxabie or tax-deductibie items in other years
that can not be deducted from taxabie or tax. The Group’s liability for current tax balance sheet date
has been enacted or substantively enacted tax rate is calculated.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax iiability or asset is determined by, taking into consideration the differences between the
assets’ and iiabilities’ shown amounts in the financial statements and is determined by calculating the
amounts recognized in the legal tax base account the for temporary differences balance sheet iiabiiity
method of tax effects have been enacted tax rates taking into consideration. Deferred tax iiabilities are
recognized for ali taxable temporary difterences, and deferred tax assets from deductible temporary
differences, future taxable profits by obtaining benefit from those differences are recognized to the
extent that it is probable. Such assets and iiabiiities, commercial or financial gam /loss on a
transaction that affects temporary difference related ta goodwill or other assets and liabilities in the
financial statements for the first time of receipt (exciuding business combinations) is not accounted for
if it originates.

Deferred tax iiabiiities are caiculated where the subsidiaries and investments in associates and
jointventures’ shares are associated with ait taxable temporary differences, except the situations
where the Group can controi the removal of the temporary difterences and the situations where this
differences has smaH possibility of removai.

These types of investments and interest associated with the taxabie temporary difterences arising
from the deferred tax asset in the near future taxabie sufficient ta obtain profit in the above mentioned
differences can probably be utilized and they are calcuiated on the condition that the differences
bounded with the future wiili be removed.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets’ book value is decreased in the case of providing ta obtain a portion or
alI of the sufficient benefits allow the extent that it is not probable that taxable profit reduced.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Deferred tax la recognized using the Iiabillty method on temporary difterences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for alI taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
wili be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes Ievied by the same
taxation authority or if there is a legal right for the group to offset these items.

Deferred Tax and Tax Charge for the Current Period

The tax charge of the current period and deferred tax of the current period, except the items
recognized as expense or income under equity (in which case the deferred tax related to those items
is recognized under equity as weil) or the items, that were recoynized under equity for business
mergers. are recognized as expense or income at the income statement for the current period. Tax
effect is taken into consideration in business mergers in calculating goodwill or in determining the fair
value of the acquired share of defined assets, Iiabilities or contingent liabilities exceeding the
purchasing costs.

i> Employee Beneflts

Employee Termination Benefits

According to the legislations and labor agreements in Turkey, employee termination benefıts are paid
in case of retirement and employment terminations. In accordance with the updated TAS 19 Employee
Benefıts Standard (“TAS 19”) such payments are considered as defined benefıt pension plans.

The employee termination Iiabilities, recognized in the financial statements, are calculated by an
assumption of the employee retirements, that wili arise in the future and their net present values,
calculated in accordance with these assumptions. AlI calculated actuarial gains and losses are
classified to income or expense under the accumulated other comprehensive income or expenses
under equity.

Dividend and Bonus Payments

Group recognizes as expense and Iiability the profit by using a formula, which takes into consideration
the adjusted profit for the shareholders, Group makas provisions in circumstances, when an
agreement or a past practice creates a liability oran obligation.

j>

Effects of rate exchanges

Each Group Entity’s financial statements are presented by the functional currencies of their economic
environments. Financial positions and operational results of the each entity is presented in TL, which
is Group’s functional and presentation currency for the fınancial statements.

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year have been translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of such transactions.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued>

Monetary balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the Central
Bank of Turkey (TCB) exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that
monitored by its fair value which are recorded in foreign currency, are canverted to TL (based on the
fair value rates are determined.). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not subject ta conversian again.

Date TL 1 USD TUEURO

December 31, 2015 2,9076 3,1776
December3l, 2014 2,3189 2,8207

Exchange differences, except as specified belaw, are recognized in profıt or loss in the period in
which:

• Foreign exchange gainilosses related ta assets under constructian for future productive use,
and included as an adjustment ta interest casts and added on cost of those assets,

• Foreign exchange difterences arising frorn hedging transactions for foreign currency risks.

• Foreign exchange differences farming part af the foreign aperation net investment, accounted
under reserves, associated with profit or lass on sale af the net investrnent, arising from
international activity debt and receivables without intentian or possibiliiy of any payment.

The Graup’s assets and liabilities af foreign aperations are expressed in TL using exchange rates
prevailing an the statement af financial position date in the fınancial staternents. Incame and expense
iterns, unless exchange rates fluctuates signiflcantly at the dates of the transactians in the period (in
case of major fluctuations, exchange rates at the transaction date is used) , are translated using
average exchange rates during the period. Exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated equity in a separate component.

k) Earnings per Share

Earnings per share disclosed in the accompanying statement af incame are determined by dividing net
incorne by the weighted average number af shares in existence during the periad concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution af shares (“bonus
shares”) ta existing sharehalders frorn retained earnings. For the purpase af earnings per share
camputations, the weighted average number af shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in
respect of banus shares issued without a carresponding change in resources, by giving thern a
retroactive effect for the periad in which they were issued and each previous year.

1) Capital and Dividends

The ardinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in
the periad are deducted.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

m) Provisions, contingent assets and liabilitles

in case of a present obligation arising from past events, and probable perform of the obJigation and the
amount of such obligations can be estimated reliabiy; provision is made in the fınancial statements.

The amount recognized as a provision is calculated by estimating the expenditure at the balance
sheet date in order to fuifıll these iiabilities, taking into consideratian the risks and uncertainties related
ta the Iiability.

in case of provisions measurement is calculated by estimated cash flow in arder to meet current
Iiabiiity; related provision’s book value is equai ta the present value of the related cash flows.

in case of the needed economic benefits of pravision’s required payment is expected (a portian oralı)
to be paid from a third pary; they are recognized as assets if the foliowing requirements are met:
amaunt ta be collected, the appropriate amount ta be certainiy callected, and reliabiy measured

n> Reporting of Cash Fiows

in the cash flow statements, are based on cash fiaw operating for the period, investing and financing
activities ciassifıed and reparted.

Cash flaws generating from operating activities shows the the cash flows generating from Groups
main operating activities (textiles 8 garments for saJe).

Cash flaws reiated to investing activities shows the Group’s cash flaws used and abtained in the
investment activities (asset investments afinancial investments).

Cash flows reiated to fınancing activities show the resources used in financing activities of the Group
and the repayment of these sources.

Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and purchases from the
date of maturity af 3 months or iess than 3 manths, readiiy convertible to cash, which may be
significant changes in value of bearing risk with high iiquidity and other short-term investments.

o> Subsequent events

Subsequent events related ta the profit announcement or any other financial information disclosed to
the public even if they occurred after the balance sheet date, it covers alI events between the
balance sheet and baiance sheet date of authorization for publication.

Group, in case of subsequent events requiring adjustment after balance sheet date, the amounts are
corrected according ta this new situation in the financial statements.

p) Segmental reporting of financial information

A reportable segment is a section which carries out operation activities by which the entity can acquire
proceeds and make expenditures and in which the results af operatians are revised regulariy by an
authority making decisions regarding the operations of the entity in order ta make decisions on
resources ta be aliocated ta the segment and to evaluate the performance of the segment and on
which separate information is available.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Reportable segment information required ta be disclosed is an operating segment. An operating
segment asa reportable segment should be identified as; the portion of the proceeds af the majority
sales acquisitions must be made from groups external customers from sales acquisition and the
proceeds from groups’ external customers and the proceeds fram transactions of other segments with
other departments, and alı intemal and external segments arising total revenue st least 10% or, profıt
or loss segment result of ali segments in profıt the total results in loss sum of the parts results in
absolute terms, which is great at least 10% ta hit OF its assets alI sections of the tatal assets must be
consisting of at least 10% or more.

r) Government Grants and Incentives

Government incentives are not reflected in the financial statements; without the business fulfılment of
the necessary conditions for obtaining that incentive which wilI and a reasonable assurance that they
shall be obtained.

Government grants, intended to meet the costs of these incentives are refiected as an expense in
profıt or loss in a systematic manner throughout the periods. The government grants asa fınancing
tool, rather than being accounted asa net off item proflt or tass, should be associated with the
statement of financial position (balance sheet) as unearned income, should be reflected in a
systematic manner in profit or ioss during the economic life of the related assets.

The Group is supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (“TUBITAK9.
TUBITAK carries out a program ta organize and regulate the support of the Republic of Turkey in
order ta encourage research and technology development activities of industries in Turkey. Within the
framework of this program, some part of the development expenses of industrial companies is
reimbursed.

Government incentives granted in arder ta recover the expenses and losses incurred previously or to
provide immediate finance support without causing the entity any cost in the future are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they become collectable. The benefit of the oan taken from the
government with an interest rate iower than that of the market is considered as government incentive,
The benefıt created by this Iower interest rate is measured as the difference between the carrying
vaiue of the oan in the beginning and the acquired gains.

5) Operating leases

The Group as the Iessee

Leases where a signiflcant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
ciassifıed as aperating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of camprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

The Group as the Iessor

Rent income from lessees is recognized equally during the rent period in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Rent income collected as advance is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income systematicaily on a monthly basis using the straight line method
during the rent period.
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2. Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

t) The critical decisions taken while applying the Groups accounting policies

Liabllity for employee termination benefits

The present values of employee termination liabilities are determined on an actuadal basis using
certain assumptions. These assumptions are used in determining the net cost of employee termination
liabilities and include the reduction in the rate. The carrying amount effects employee termination
liability if any changes occur in these assumptions. Actuadal gains and losses are associated with the
income statement in the period in which they arise.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This rate of employee
termination Iiabilities that are necessary for the fulfillment of the present value of estimated future cash
outflows used in the calculation (Note 21>.

Net Realizable Value of lnventory

lnventories are stated at the Iower of cost and net realizable value. The Group Management has
determined that the cost of inventories is higher than the realizable value as of the reporting date. The
impairment calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the sale of inventories and the estimated selling price Iess alI estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Based on the estimation made by the Management as of December 31,
2015 the cost of inventories was reduced by TL 295.388 (December 31, 2014: TL 2.614.406> (Note
10>.

Deferred Tax

The Group statutory tax financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRS financial statements
for the temporary ditferences ansing from differences between the deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized. These differences are usually some tax amounts of revenue and expenses in flnancial
statements prepared in accordance with TFRS is due to take place in different periods. Can be
downloaded from the Group’s future profıts and other deductible temporary differences, are unused
tax losses and deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets partially or fuliy recoverable amount is
estimated under current conditions. During the assessment. projections of future proflts. losses
incurred in the current period, unused losses and other tax assets expiration dates and potential tax
planning strategies were considered. Portable tax loss not exceeding five years, subject to period
income can be reduced and the projected period of the Group is the high financial losses that tay use
the extent of taxable income the possibility of creating in accounting principle of prudence evaluated
with the said fınancial losses deferred tax assets is calculated.

Doubtful receivables

Provision for doubtful receivables of the Group management as of the balance sheet date but current
economic conditions existing in the collection risk of future osses on existing receivables that believed
to be reflecting the amounts. Value of receivables be impaired while assessing the related companies
and key customers outside the debtors’ past performance on the market credibility and the balance
sheet date the fınancial statements were approved until the date that performance with renegotiated
conditions are taken into account.
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2. Basis of presentation of fınancial statements <continued)

Recoverv of internally generated intangible asseis

Development activities (or intra-group project’s development phase) resulting from internally generated
intangible assets ,only those assets are technically feasible to ready for use or sale, operating the
asset completion, use, or intention to sell, the presence of intangible assets use or sell the facility the
presence of intangible assets probable future economic benefits how to build it can be demonstrated
as well as intangible assets output or the intangible asset itself existence of a market or within the
business is to be used intangible assets to be available, the development phase is complete and the
material use or seil of the intangible asset must be adequate technically fınancial and other resources
in the development process of the present and of the expenditures related to the intangible asset can
be measured reliably are recognized. In case of internally generated intangible assets are not able to
be recorded, development expenditure is recognized as an expense in the period they occur.

During the period, the Group management internaliy generated intangible assets has re-examine the
existence of probable future economic benefits. The Groups management believes that the projects
will continue as expected, and analysis of projects is expected to generate similar economic benefıts.
Management is sure to recover the registered values of the assets, even if economic beneflts have
decreased. This situation is being closely monitored by management and management of future
market activity requires adjustment shall be made in cases where the correction comes.

Provisions

When provisions for lawsuits are reserved, the probabilty of losing the case and loss in case of losing
the case is evaluated by the group’s legal advisors’ opinion, and the best estimates are made by using
the data by the group management.

Fair value of the derivative financial instruments and other fınancial instruments

Group, calculates the fair value of the financial instruments that do not have an active market by
utilizing from market data, taking intto consideration of the similar instruments’ fair value and using
discounted cash flow analysis.

3. Business combinations

None. (2014: None).

4. Business partnerships

None (2014:None).
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5. Reporting by segments

As Group has started to implement the TFRS 8 from 1 January 2009, the operating segments are
defined by the Group’s decision-making authority regarding the activities regulariy revised on internal
reports. Group decision-making authority is the general manager and the board of directors.

Group’s decision-making authority, examines the results and activities on the product types in order to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the departments and to evaluate the departments’
performance. The Group’s operating segments on the basis of the distribution of the business
segments are as follows: textiles and garments.

a) Segment Revenues:

January 1,- January 1,-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Textile 250.819.568 304.422.698
Gamıent 12.875.774 14.635.836

263.695.342 319.058.534

b) Segment Assets:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Textile 268.009.957 286.132.607
Garment 20.035.794 6.811.307

288.045.751 292.943.914

c) Segment Liabilities:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Textile 203.197.217 190.476.379
Garment 280.521 570.932

203.477.738 191.047.311
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otherwise indicated)

5. Reporting by segments (continued>

d-1) January 1 - December 31, 2015 period section analysis:

Textile Garment Total

Sales revenue 250.819.568 12.875.774 263.695.342
Cost of sales (196.381.491) (8.769.568) (205.151.059)

Gross profıt 54.438.077 4.106.206 58.544.283

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (28.872.876) (1.236.558) (30.109.434)
General and administrative expenses (13.980.047) (452.149) (14.432.196)
Research and development expenses (1.149.807) - (1.149.807)
Otheroperating income and profıts 21.164.994 49.764 21.214.758
Other operating expenses and losses (7.163.094) (204.954) (7.368.048)

Segment result 24.437.247 2.262.309 26.699.556

d-1> Januaıy 1 - December 31, 2014 period section analysis:

Textile Garment Toplam

Sales revenue 304.422.698 14.635.836 319.058.534
Cost of seles (230.710.714) (13.585.165) (244.295.879)

Gross profit 73.711.984 1.050.671 74.762.655

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (33.026.667) (3.835.472) (36.862.139)
General and administrative expenses (10.937.519) (445.761) (11.383.280)
Research and development expenses (1.425.498) - (1.425.498)
Otheroperating income and profits 13.724,444 286.864 14.011.308
Other operating expenses and losses (9.983.005) (1.261.133) (11.244.138)

Segment result 32.063.739 <4.204.831> 27.858.908

e> lnvestment expenditures

January 1 — January 1 —

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Textile 6.298.661 20.115.192
Garment 197.243 53.135

6.495.904 20.168.327
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

5. Reporting by segments (continued)

f-1) January 1 - December 31, 2015 period expenses not requiring cash outflow:

Textile Garment Total

- Depreciation and amoflization 12.906.326 79.986 12.986.312
- Provisions for employee beneflts 5.190.647 102.112 5.292.759

18.096.973 182.098 18.279.071

f-2) January 1 - December 31, 2014 period expenses not reguiring cash outflow:

Textile Garment Total

- Depreciation and amortization 12.087.068 271.279 12.358.347
- Provisions for employee benefits 3.437.679 316.315 3.753.994

15.524.747 587.594 16.112.341

6. Cash and cash equivalents

December3l, 2015 December3l, 2014
Bank
- Demand deposits 360.199 2.602.394
- Time deposits 3.653.800 10.449.169
Other 1.375 6.980

4.015.374 13.058.543

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in Nota 33.

() Time deposits of the Company for TL and USD and interest rates are 6% and 06%,
respectively. Maturity of of time deposits of the Company is Iess than 1 month.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
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7. Related party disclosures

December 31, December 31,
a> Trade receivables from related parties: 2015 2014

Bimsa Uluslararası iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş. <2> - 2.022
Enerjisa Enerji AŞ. <2) - 340

- 2.362

Less: Unaccrued fınance income - (80)

- 2.282

Receivables from related parties generally are shorter than 4 months (2014:4 months or less) on
December 31, 2015 TL and foreign currency denominated receivables from related parties are
discounted by 11,29% and LIBOR rates.

December 31, December 31,
b) Payables ta related parties: 2015 2014

AksigortaA.Ş. (2) 37.358 12.305
Hacı Ömer Sabancı Holding A.Ş. <1) 10.341 12.283
Bimsa Uluslararası iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş. <2) 311.622 16.345
Brisa Bridgestone Sabancı Lastik San. Tic. AŞ. (2) 17.404 -

Teknosa lçve Dış Tic. A.Ş. (2>
- 110

376.725 41.043

Less: Unaccrued finance expense (12.767) (954)

363.958 40.089

Payables to related parties are due shorter than four months in December 31, 2015. TL and foreign
currency denominated payables to related parties are discounted respectively by 11,29% per annum
and LIBOR rates.

December 31, December 31,
c> Bank deposits: 2015 2014

Akbank T.A.Ş.(2)
- Demand deposit 127.025 1.753.537
- Time deposit 3.653.800 -

3.780.825 1.753.537

December 31, December 31,
d) Bank laans: 2015 2014

Akbank T.AŞ.(2) 562.000 1.332,000

582.000 1.332.000

(1) Shareholder
(2) ınter-group company
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 <continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

7. Related party disclosures (continued)

e) Goods purchased from related parties:

January 1- January 1 -

December3l, December 31,
2015 2014

Carrefoursa A.Ş.(2) 17012 16.064

17.012 16.064

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

f) Product sales to related parties: 2015 2014

Hacı Ömer Sabancı Holding A.Ş.(1) - 10.437
Brisa Bridgestone Sabancı Lastik San. Tic. A.Ş. (2) - 40.249
Exsa Export Sanayi Mamulleri Satış ve Araştırma A.Ş.(2) - 315
Enerjisa Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satış A.Ş.(2) - 414
Enerjisa Enerji A.Ş.(2) - 2.817
Enerjisa Enerji Üretim A.Ş.(2) - 1.044
Enerjisa Elek. Per. Sat. A.Ş.(2) - 1.395
Enerjisa Doğalgaz Top. Sat. A.Ş.(2) - 315
Enerjisa Enerji Hizmetleri A.Ş.(2) - 315
Bimsa Uluslararası iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş.(2) - 1.872
Temsa iş Mak. Imalat Paz. ve Sat. A.Ş.(2) 7.540 315
Temsa Motorlu Araç. Paz. ve Dağ. A.Ş.(2) - 315
Hacı Ömer Sabancı Vakfı - 729

7.540 60.532

(1> Sharehcıder
(2> ınter-graup company

g) Service purchases from related parties: January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Aksigorta A.Ş.(*) (2) 1.355.573 1.422.162
Hacı ÖmerSabancı Holding A.Ş.)(1) 1.371.754 1.174.783
Bimsa Uluslararası iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş.(***) (2) 568.372 174.609
Avivasa Emeklilik ve Hayat A.Ş. ) (2) 96.255 103.640
Sabtek San. ve Tic. A.Ş. ) (2) 18.351 -

Brisa Bhdgestone Sabancı Lastik San. Tc. A.Ş. (2) 14.749 -

Enerjisa Enerji A.Ş.(2) 7.608 -

Sabancı Üniversitesi - 3.600

3.432.662 2.878.794
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otheıwise indicated)

7. Related party disclosures (continued)

ii) Fixed asset purchases from related parties: January 1- January 1-
December3l, December 31,

2015 2014

Bimsa Uluslararası Iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş. (2) 535.554 1.305.560
Teknosa Iç VC Dış Ticaret A.Ş. (2) 13.263 32.509
Temsa iş Mak. Imalat Paz. ve Sat. A.Ş.(2) - 18.505

548.817 1.356.574

() The Group is taking insurance services from Aksigorta A.Ş.
Ç) The Group is taking health service. maintenance and repair services and taking building services from Haci Omer

Sabanci Holding
() The Group is taking information-processing services and fıxed assets from Bimsa Ulus. Iş, Bilgi ve Yön. Sis. A.Ş.

) The Group is taking insurance seMce from Avivasa Emeklilik Hayat A.Ş.

ı) Other income: January 1 - January 1-
December 31, December 31

2015 2014

AksigortaA.Ş. (2) 3.264 1.242.660
Bimsa Uluslararası iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş. <2) 877 13.774

4.141 1.256.434

i) Other expense: January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2016 2014

Aksigorta A.Ş. <2) 2.857 -

Bimsa Uluslararası Iş, Bilgi ve Yönetim Sistemleri A.Ş. (2) 1.158 272

4.015 272

(1) Shareholder
(2> lnter-group company

k) Interest and exchange rate expense: January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Akbank TAŞ. (*) (2) 2.782.952 674.284

2.782.952 674.284

<*) TL 2.071.987 of interest and foreign exchange expense with Akbank during the year consists of
foreign exchange losses.

(2) lnter-group company
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Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
as af December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otheıwise indicated)

7. Related party disclosures (continued)

1) Wages and similar remuneration paid to Board members and senior management
personnel:

Januaryl- Januaryl
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Salaries and othershort-term benefıts 2.190344 2.779.388
Other Iong-term benefits 398.451 319.780

2.588.795 3.099.168

8. Trade receivables and payables

Short term trade receivables: December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Trade receivables 78.977.447 102.466.018
Receivables from related parties (Note:7) - 2,362
Notes receivable 18.483.648 20.771.931

97.461.095 123.240.311

Less: Unearned fınance income (-) (1.203.641) (633.611)

Trade receivables, net 96.257.454 122.606.700

Trade receivables have generally less than four months maturity (2014: less than 4 months) and on
December 31, 2015, TL and foreign currency trade receivables are discounted by 1129% and LIBOR
rates respectively.

The explanations of nature and level of risk in trade receivables are giyen in Note 33.

Short-term trade payables: December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Foreign trade payables 19.205.806 20.049.336
Domestic trade payables 13,667,945 19.423.334
Work and service payables 3,697,967 4.060.671
Payables to related parties (Note 7) 376.725 41.043

36.948.443 43.574.384

Less: Unaccrued financial expense (-) (511.714) (551.529)

36.436.729 43.022.855

Maturity of trade payables is between ito 3 months, and on December 31, 2015 the TL and foreign
currency denominated trade payables are discounted by 11,29% and LIBOR rates respectively.

Explanations of nature and level of risks in trade payables are giyen in Note 33.
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Notes to the consolidated fınancial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

9. Other receivables and deferred income

Other receivables December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Income accruals () 1.690.417 1.686935
Due from personnel 48.541 41.876
Other 6.548 21.285

1.745.506 1.750.096

() Income accruals as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are mainly consists of incentive accruals in
scope of Turquality and they are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as income since
they ara not directly related to development expenses and investments made by the Group.

Deferred income

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Order advances received 861.935 870.748

861.935 870.748

10. Inventories

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Raw materials 8.315.359 6.032,272
Semi-fınished goods 33.024.311 29.765.787
Finished goods 47.908.380 27.003.655
Trade goods 6.966.558 2.278.146
Goods in transit 5.955.688 9.398.497
Other inventories 1.591.755 2.132.250
Provision for impairment of inventories (-) (295.388) (2.614.406)

103.466.663 73.996.201

Reductions in market conditions and customer demand causes an increase in the Group’s inventories,
obsolence or is caused to be carried higher than the market value. The movement in the provision for
impairment of inventories is as follows:

2015 2014

January 1 (2.614.406) (212.026)
Provisions made during the period (Note 25) (177.701) (2.614.406)
Provisions released during the period (Note 25> 2.496.719 212.026

December 31 <295.388) <2.614.406)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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11. Living assets

None (2014: None).

12. Prepaid expenses

Shortterm December3l, December3l,
2015 2014

Consultancy and fairadvances 1.183.622 1.902.761
Insurance expenses 34.456 9.957
Letter of guarantee commissions 101.040 61.926
Stock Advances 275.279 208.259
Other 136.517 98.285

1.730.914 2.281.18

Long term December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Fixed asset advances 192.102 41.745

192.102 41.745

13. lnvestment Properties

None (2014: None).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL> unless otherwise indicated)

14. Tangible assets

The mavements of tangible assets are as foilows:

January 1, December 31,
2015 Additions Disposais Transfers 2015

Cost:

Land 340.501 - - - 340.501
Land Imprcvements 6803.280 290233 - - 7093513
Buildings 44.077.802 933.341 - 45.011.143
Machinery and equipment 187.841.800 3.051.077 (7.640.509) 255.036 183.507.404
Vehictes 135.049 - . 135.049
Furniture and fıxture 5.634.216 573.466 (905) 14,483 6.221.260
Leasehaid Impravements 775.112 250.802 . - 1.025.914
Construction in progress 18.255 398.537 . (273.907) 142.885

245.626.015 5.497.456 (7.641.414> (4.388) 243.477.669

Accumulated depreciation:

Land lmprovements (6.011.123) (114.796) - . (6.125.919)
Buildings (26.525.200) (970.666) - (27.495.866)
Machinery and equipment (154.875.120) (7.077.281) 7.629.834 - (154.322.567)
Vehicles (97.304) (15.680) . - (112.984)
Furniture and flxture (4.022.318) (342.223) 896 - (4.363.645)
Leasehaid lmprovements (770.890) (46.263) - (817.153)

(192.301.955) (8.566.909) 7.630.730 - (193.238.134)

Net book value 53.324.060 50.239.535

Current period depreciation and amortization expenses have been included in cost of goods Said
amounting to TL 8.445.873, in operating expenses amounting to TL 121.036.

The movements of tangible assets as of December 31, 2014 are as foliows:

Januaış 1, December 31,
2014 Additlons Disposais Transfers 2014

cost:

Land 482,197 (141.696) - 340.501
Land Improvements 6.656.949 146.331 - 6.803.280
Buildings 42,046.367 1.932.229 (5.931) 105.137 44.077.802
Machinery and equipment 175.002.895 13.826.983 (2.041.115) 1.053.037 187.841.800
Vehicles 135.049 - . - 135.049
Fumiture and fıxture 5.288.127 1.026.607 (680.518) - 5,634,216
Leasehaid Improvements 3.570.213 . (2.795.101) - 775.112
Construction in progress 821.752 798,530 - (1,602.027) 18,255

234.003.549 17.730.580 (5.664.361) (443.853) 245.626.015

Accumulated depreciation:

Land Improvements <5.903.679) (107.444) - - (6.011.123)
Buildings (25.567.462) <957.762) 24 - (26.525.200)
Machinery and equipment (149.797.152) (7.086,936) 2,008,968 - (154.875.120)
Vehicles (81.624) (15.680) - <97.304)
Furniture and fıxture (4.236.029) (279.948) 493.659 - (4.022.318)
Leasehold Improvements <2.894.436) (200.590) 2.324.136 - (770.890)

(188.480.382) (8.648,360) 4.826.787 - (192.301.955)

Net book value 45.523.167 53.324.060
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15. Intangible assets

January 1, December3l,
2015 Addltions Disposais Transfers 2015

Costs:

Rights 104.796 129.692 - - 234.488
Software programs 7.710.104 993.385 - 4.388 8.707.877
Capitalized deveJopment project costs 11.887.630 5.456.111 . - 17.353.741
RD prajects in progress 2.369.280 - 2.359.280

22.071.810 5.589.188 - 4.388 28.665.356

Accumulated depreciation:

Rights (89.169) <14.556) . (103.725)
Software programs (5.061.979) (898.573) . - (5.960.552)
RaD projects (5.036.456) (3.506.274) . . (8.542.730)

(10.187.604) (4.419.403) . . (14.607.007)

Net book vaiue 11.884.206 14.058.379

There are na caliaterais, piedges or martgages on tangible assets (2014- None). Current period
amortization has been included in the cost of goods said amounting ta TL 4.318.295, TL 101.108 in
operating expenses.

January 1, December 31,
2014 Additlons Disposais Transfers 2014

Costs:

Rights 351.383 - (246.587) - 104.796
Software programs 5.615.481 1.665.499 (14.729) 443.853 7.710.104
Capitalized development praject costs 7.139.041 4.748.589 . - 11.887.630
RD projects in progress 2.647.239 - (277.959) - 2.369.280

15.753.144 6.414.088 (539.275) 443.853 22.071.810

Accumulated depreciatlon:

Rights (305.940) (18.859) 235.630 . (89.169)
Software programs (3.851.399) (1.214.768) 4.158 . (5.061.979)
RD projects (2.550.096) (2.476.360) . - (5.036.456)

(6.717.435> (3.709.987) 239.818 . (10.187.604)

Net book value 9.035.709 11.884.206

16. Goodwiii

None (2014: None).
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17. Gavernment incentives and grants

December 31, December 31,

_____________

2015

______

2014

Research and development projects incentive () 4.076.424 3.299.364

4.076.424 3.299.364

() Group, as a result of Research and Development Center application, has been granted to obtain, lndustry
and Trade Ministry’s Research and Development Center Certifıcate on Ociober 25, 2010 consists of the
incentive amount received according to 5746 numbered Research and Development Activities in Support
of the Law on the framework provided in the amount of Research and Development Center staff on the
wages benefited income Tax, Stamp Tax, Social Security incentives and TUBITAK.

Government incentives, as 5 finance tool in order to clarify their expenditure item instead of
accounting in profit or loss, rather than investment costs reduction as an element statement of
financial position (balance sheet) has been associated with and related assets over the useful lives on
a systematic basis in profit or loss is recognized.

18. Financial iiabilities - borrawing costs

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Weighted average Weighted average

annual effective annual eftective
interest rate % TL interest rate % TL

Short term bank loans

TL borrowings 11.29 97.526.632 9,21 73.388.431
Euro borrowings 1,09 32.434573 1,47 26.415.043
USD borrowings 1,35 9.149.042 157 21.781.582
Pound borrowings 2.38 4.627.553 249 5.444.496

Total 143.737.800 127.029.552

Interest accwa$ 2.717.599 2.290.878

146.455.399 129.320.430

Explanations of nature and level of risks in financial liabilities are giyen in Note 33.

19. Pravisians, cantingent assets and contingent liabilities

Cantingent assets and liabilities:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Bails received and guarantee notes 11.103.022 7.312.372
Received Ietters of guarantee 4.064.758 4.820.195
Mortgages 1.655.050 1.655.050

16.822.830 13.787.617

Guarantees received has been received essentially regarding the sale made from customers. The
associated part of letter of guarntee received with fınancial risks are shown in Note 33. Company’s
exports are also insured by Turkish Eximbank.
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(Convenience translation into english of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 <continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otherwise indicated>

19. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent Iiabilities (continued)

The raüo between other CPMs giyen by the Group and the Groups equity is 0% as of December 31,
2015. (December3l, 2014:0%)

Letters of guarantee are giyen to various Customs Directorates. As of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, the Group has na other giyen CPMs.

20. Commitments

Group, under the inward processing authorization documents, has export commitment amounting USD
19.760.525 (December 31, 2014: USD 14.400.000).

Leasing contracts:

Graups expenses associated with current year operating leases are TL 2.322.703. (December 31,
2014: TL 3.490.567)

The Group’s lease commitments related ta operating leases are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Upto 1 year 581.366 1.584.022
1-5 year 251.641 1.702.296

833.007 3.286.318

21. Provision and Iiabilities related to employee benefıts

Short term provision for empoyee benefıts:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Unused vacation Iiability 1.313.970 1.809.510
Wages payable 1.127.454 1.616.168
Taxes a funds payable 1.334.326 1.367.843
Sacial security deductians 1.494.016 1.656.165

5.269.766 6.449.686

For the periods ended on December 31, the movement of vacation pay provision is as follaws:

2015 2014

January 1 1.809.510 1.429.012
Released during the period, net 2.807.499 2.089.603
Na langer required (3.303.039) (1.709.105)

December3l 1.313.970 1.809.510
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

21. Provision for employment termination beneflts (continued)

Provisions for shoft-term employee benefits:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Bonus provision
- 1.050.000

- 1.050.000

Provisions for long-term employee benefits:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Provision for employee termination benefıts 12.052.495 8.631.508

12.052.495 8.631.508

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay termination beneflts to each employee who
has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, or who is
called up for military service, dies or retires after completing 25 years of seMce (20 years for women).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 4.092,53 for each year
of service as of December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014- TL 3.541.37). The amount payable consists
of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 4.092,53 as of January 1 2015.

AS 19 (“Employee Benefits”) suggests that the Group’s liabilities are developed using the actuarial
valuation techniques within the scope of defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the actuarial assumptions
used in the calculation of total Iiabilities are mentioned below:

The principal assumption is that the maximum Iiability for each year of service wili increase in line with
infiation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future infiation. Therefore, as of December 31! 2015, provisions in the
accompanying consolidated fınancial statements, future, contingent liabilities due to retirement of
employees is calculated by estimating the present value. Provisions in the balance sheet dates, 7,30%
of the annual infiation rab and 11,00% of discount rate is calculated on the estimations obtained as
3,45% real discount rate used (December 31, 2014: 3,30%).Esfimated turnover rate for probability of
retirement is calculated as 96,75%. The severance pay amount that not giyen to the employee, asa
consequence of optional reginations, is taken into account. Employees of the Group as of December 31,
2015 of 3,25% are more Iikely to leave the job with their requests. (December 31, 2014: 3,41%).

For the pehods ended December 31; movements in the provision for employment termination benefıts
are as follows:

2015 2014

January 1 8.631.508 6.999.085
lnterestcost 949.466 664.913
Cost of seMces 4.838.834 2.708.583
Actuarial gam / Ioss 3.129.625 690.209
Payments (5.496.938) (2.431.282)

December 31 12.052.495 8.631.509
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes ta the cansolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otheıwise indicated)

22. Other assets a liabilities

Derivative fınancial instruments

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Derivative fınancial assets 1.516.756 3.805.171

1.516.756 3.805.171

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Derivative financial liabilities 792.772 92.657

792.772 92.657

A part of the Group’ sale has been preserved with foreign currency forward contracts.

The nominal amounts of the foreign currency forward contracts are Euro 36.000.000, USD 9.000.000
and GBP 4.200.000.

December 31, December 31,
Othercurrentassets 2015 2014

VAT return to be requested 789.368 582.563
Deferred VAT 8.533.290 5.407.909
Job advances 258.294 92.740
Other 578.040 346.588

10.158.992 6.429.800

December 31, December 31,
Other short term Iiabilities 2015 2014

Cost provision 1.608,642 1.491.665
Other - 6.682

1.608.642 1.498.347

23. Equity

A> Share capital:

Shareholders and share percentages of the Group as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

TL Share(%)

Hacı Ömer Sabancı Holding A.Ş. 16.878.507 57,88
Publicly listed and Other (*) 12.281.493 42,12

29.160.000 100,00

(t) TL 10.612.565 of the listed part and its other item represents the publiciy listed part and its rate
is 36,39% (December 31, 2014 TL 8.930.818 of the listed part and its other item represents the
publicly listed part and its rate is 30,63%).
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

23. Equity (continued)

The Group’s authorized and issued share capital is registered nominal value of Kr 1 each shares
consists of 2.916.000.000 shares (2014: 2.916.000.000)

B) Restricted reserves;

The statutory financial statements other than legal reserves, retained earnings, subject to the legal
reserve requirement referred to below are available for distribution.

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (‘1CC”). The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of
statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of ali cash
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in capital, Under the TCC, the legal reserves can be used
only ta offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in
capital.

C) Foreign currency conversion ditferences:

The individual financial statementa of each Group’s entity operates in the currency of the primary
economic environment (functional currency) are presented. Each entitys financial position and results
of operations of the Group, which is the functional currency and presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements are expressed in TL.

The movements in the foreign currency conversion difterences are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Opening balance 439.996 485.928
Overseas company’s net assets conversion exchange

differences 167,867 (45.932)

Closing balance 607.863 439.996

(45)
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

23. Equity (continued)

Dividend distribution

Campanies whose shares are traded at the stack exchange are subject ta the dividend conditian
impased by 0MB as fallows:

According ta Artiale 19 af the Capital Market Law numbered 6362 which taak etfeot an December 30,
2012, and the “Cammuniqu an Prafit Share” numbered 11-19.1 effective as af February 1,2014,
listed companies shall distribute their prafıts as part of the prafit distributian policies ta be determined
by their general assemblies and in accardance with the related regulatian pravisians. Regarding the
praflt distributian policies af listed campanies, the assembiy may set different principles on the basis af
similar campanias.

In accardance with the Turkish Cammercial Cade (TCC), unless the required reserves and the
dividend far sharehalders as determined in the article of associatian ar in the dividend distributian
palicy af the campany are set aside, na decisian may be made ta set aside other reserves, ta transfer
prafıts ta the subsequent year arta distribute dividends to the holders af usufruct right certificates, ta
the members af the baard af directars arta the emplayees; and na dividend can be distributed ta these
persons unless the determined dividend for shareholders is paid in cash.

Dividends in public companies, as af the distribution date af the shares available ta aU, irrespective af
their date af issuance and acquisitian is eveniy distributed.

According ta current regulations partnerships, prafıts dividend palicy wiil be determined by the General
Assembiy and in accardance with the decisian af the general meeting in accardance with the relevant
legislation distributes. In said regulatians, at least one distributian rate is noted. Campanies based in
cantract ar in the manner specifled in the dividend distribution palicy wili pay dividends. in additian,
dividends may be paid in installments egual or different, cansistent and interim fınancial statements af
the praflts wiil be able to distribute cash dividend advances.

Graup’s dividend payment made in the current period is TL 17.496.000.

24. Sales

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Expart sales 158.134.867 168.674.406
Domestic sales 105.560.475 150.384.128

263.695.342 319.058.534



(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 <continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

25. Cost of sales

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

______________

2015 2014

Raw materials and material expenses (102.848.269) (117573606)
Direct labor costs (32.759.984) (37655.154)
General production expenses <55.684.195) (64288294)
Depreciation and amortization expense (12.764.168) (11971626)
Changes in inventories of semi1inished goods 3.138153 4.159.931
Changes in inventories of finished goods 20.904726 6.558.459

Cost of finished goods sold (180.013.737) (220.770.290)

Cost of trade goods sold <27.456.341) <21.123.209)

Change in provision for impairment of inventories 2.139.019 (2.402.380)

Cost of sales (205.151.059) (244.295.879)

26. Research and development expenses, marketing, selling and distribution expenses and
general administrative expenses

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

Marketing1seWng and distribution expenses -— 2015

-—

2014

Personnel (4.491.712) (4.967.153)
Consulting (6.353.966) (7.482.327)
Export and freight (14.867.583) (18.043.042)
Marketing (567.028) (548.208)
Rent (1.124.441) (1.925.358)
Transportation (610.652) (689.271)
Depreciation and amortization (111.032) (292.621)
Advertising (57.748) (412.549)
Other (1.925.272) (2.501.610)

Total Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (30.109.434) <36.862.139)
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

26. Research and development expenses, marketing, selling and distribution expenses and
general administrative expenses (continued)

Januaryl- Januaryl
December 31, December 31,

Çç!rjadministrative expenses - - 2015

Personnel (4.761,237) (5.682.594)
Consulting (1.500.353) (213.938)
Rent (745.634) (692.556)
Retirement pay liability (Note 21) (5.788.299) (3373.496)
Vacation payment provision (Note 21) 495.540 (380.498)
Depreciation and amortization (60.801) (49.280)
Other (2.071.412) (990.918)

Total general administrative expenses (14.432.196) (11.383.280)

January 1 January 1-
December 31, December 31,

ResearchandyoppentExpenses
— Pİ4

Personnel (755.064) (959.215)
Depreciation and amortization (50.311) (44.820)
Other (344.432) (421.463)

Total research and development expenses (1.149.807> (1.425.498)

27. Other operating income 1 expense

Januaryi- Januaryl
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Raw material and scrap material sales income 251.403 438.425
Price difference reciamation income 214.735 193.769
Foreign exchange gam from trade receivables and payables 16.122.312 9.894.700
Delay interest income 37.902 13.930
Textile employer union income 712.525 1.849.600
Turquality incentive income 1.399.916 643.771
lncentives ta participating fairs 888.375 521.238
Other 1.587.590 455.875

Total other income / profit 21.214.758 14.011.308

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Gam on saleoftangibleassetsales 1.077.678 19.463.629

Total income from investment activities 1.077.678 19.463.629
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

27. Other operating income 1 expense (continued)

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

__________________________

2015 2014

Monthly fees (357237) (715.103)
Special transaction tax (29.153) (41.024)
Compensations and penalties (125.931) (866.498>
Raw material and scrap material sales expense (16.914) (25.827)
Non-tax deductible expenses (439.251) (69.688>
Foreign exchange Ioss from trade receivables and payables (5.412.948) (7.970.543)
Provision expense - <491.072)
Donations (14.983) <517.837)
Interest expense (609.924> -

Insurance claim expense
- (246.390)

Other (361.707) (300.156>

Total other expense 1 Ioss (7.368.048) (11.244.138)

28. Expense by nature

A) Accrued wapes and salaries

Januaryl- Januaryi
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
Öosioigoods sold - <ğ.ğ53.771) - (42.47.582)
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (3.551.712) (3.843.188)
General administrations expense (3.907.601) (4.866.009)
Research and development expense (755.064) (959.215)

(48.168.148> (52.615.994>

Bi Distribution of depreciation and amortization

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Cost of goods sold (12,764.168) (11.971.626)
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (111.032) (292.621)
General administrations expense (60.801) (49.280)
Research and development expense (50.311> (44.820)

(12.986.312> (12.358.347)

(49)
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL> unless otheıwise indicated)

29. Financial expenses

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

__________________________

2015 2014

Foreign exchange expense (11.186.411) (2.141.853)
Interest expense (9.496337) (8.709.619)
Otherfinance expense (1,874.660) (1.620.963)

(22.557.408> <12.472.435)

30. Available for sale long-term assets and stopped operations

Nane (2014: None).

31. Tax aşsets and Iiabilities

Tax amounts recognized in the balance sheet table is as follows.

December 31, December 31,

_____________________________

2015 2014

Current income tax payable - 3.597.717
Less: Prepaid taxes (234.964) (3.486.637)

(234.964> 111.080

Cornora ilan fax

The Groups main shareholder, the Company is subject to corporation tax applicable in Turkey. The
Company’s current period results of operations for the estimated tax Iiabilities in the financial
statements iş necessary provisions. Taxable income wiil be accrued over the corporate tax rate,
commercial earnings expense in determining post from the tax base deductible expenses, and trom
resident companies, dividends received, tax exempt income and investment incentives utilized
remaining after the base is calculated over.

The effective tax rate in 2015 is 20% (2014: 20%).

In Turkey, advance tax quarterly pedads are calculated and accrued. Corparate income tax periads in
2014 as of a temporary stage of taxation on carporate earnings in the temporary tax is calculated at
20% (2014: 20%).

Lasses ta be deducted from the taxable profit in future years, carried maximum 5 years. Damages
retraactively, can not be deducted from the prafits of the previaus year.

in Turkey, a flnal and definitive agreement on tax assessments, there is na pracedure. Companies file
their tax returns, follawing the ciasing af the accaunting year prepared between April ıto 25. Tax
autharities such returns and the underiying accounting recards and may revise assessments within
five years.

The Group’s foreign-based subsidiaries, Yünsa Germany Gmbh in Germany, Yünsa taha SRL in Italy,
Yünsa UK Limited in the UK and Yünsa USA mc. Is installed in the United States, they are subject to
the tax legislation of the cauntry. Since the companies’ activities are limited, there is na impadant
amaunt af tax Iiability.
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otherwise indicated>

31. Tax assets and liabiiities (continued)

İncome tax stopage:

in addition ta corporate taxes, in the event of distribution, acquired dividends and that their dividends
in corporate gam by deciaring resident companİes and foreign companies in Turkey dİstributed to
other, except over the dividends further income tax withholding wiil be calculated. income tax
withholding April 24, 2003- July 22, 2006 was 10% in ali companies. This ratio from 22 JuIy 2006,
2006/1 0731 by the Council af Ministers is 15%. Undistributed dividends incorporated İn share capital
are not subject ta income tax withholding.

lnvestment incentİve certiflaates obtained prior to 24 April 2003 relating ta investment allowances
amounting ta 198% wİthholdİng tax is required. After this date, na withholding tax on the investment
incentive certificate is made. The Constitutional Court of 15 October 2009 İn the income Tax Act on
the temporary investment incentive in Article 69 af the 2006, 2007 and 2008 were canceled phrases.
This time hmitation on the investment aliowance was ehminated aforementianed decision was
pubbshed İn the Offıciai Gazette dated 8 January 2010. Published İn the Officiai Gazette dated 1
October 2010 income Tax General Communİqu Na. 276 serİes, wİth the Income Tax Law with the
Law Na 6009 of the 69th After the changes made in the article, the income Tax Act regarding
İnvestment ailowance 59th agent İS situated in the busİness of İnvestment incentive iaw of 2006, 2007
and 2008 with regulations whİch limit shaH be canceled and year limitation being removed but this time
the tax base in the determmnation of investment ailowance, deduct the amount to be related earnings
to 25% and use of the İnvestment aliowance remaining after the corporate İncome tax rate will be
subject ta 20% are indicated.

Group İnvestments that benefit from a dİscount of 10% corporation tax rate has been applİed.

December 31, 2015 and 2014 for the years ended tax amaunts recognized in the income statement
are as faHows:

- December3i,2015 Oecember3l,2014

- Deferred tax income / (expense) (325.759) 820.715

(325.759> 820.715

Deferred tax

The Group recognises deferred tax assets and liabihties based upon temporary differences arising
between their financial statements as reported under CMB Financial Reporting Standards and their
statutory tax financial statements. Deferred income taxes for entities operating in Turkey are
caiculated on temporary differences that are expected to be reahsed or settied based on the taxable
income in coming years under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 20% (December 31
2014- %20).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
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31. Tax assets and liabilities <continued)

The breakdowns of cumulative temporary difterences and the resulting deferred tax assets/liabilities
provided as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 using principaltax rates are as follows:

Cumulaüve temporaiy difterences - Deferred tax assetsi (Iiabilities)
December 31 • December 31, December 31, December 31,

___________________

2015 2014 2015 2014

Investment allowance <811.615) (833.245) 162.323 166.649
Tangible and intangible assets (9.058,241) (9.215.502) 1.811.648 1.843.100
Inventodes 8.041.913 (2.420,735) (1.608.383) 484.147
Provision for employee termination benefiis (12.052.495) (8.631.508) 2.410.499 1.726.301
Other provisions 376.082 (1.704.230) (75.216) 340.847
Unaccrued financial expense (net) (10.540.007) 261.684 2.108.002 (52.337)
Derivative fınancial assets 1.516.756 3.805.171 (303.351) (761.034)
Derivative fınancaJ Iiabilities (792.772) (92.657) 158.554 16.531

Deferred fax assets net 4.664.016 3.766.204

December 31, December 31,

____

2015

_____

2014

Deferred tax assets that expected to benefit more than a year 4.384.470 3.736.050

The movement of deferred tax assets is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

____________

2015 2014

Balance at January 1 3.766.204 5.228.901

Current year deferred tax income / (expense) <325.759) 820.715
Derivative financial assets for deferred tax 597.706 (2.421.454)
Actuarial gam / Ioss on deferred tax 625.925 138.042

4.664.076 3.766.204

Income tax expense can be reconciled to the accounting proflt as follows:

January 1- January 1-
December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Profıt generated from operating activities before tax 5.219.826 34.850.102

Income tax rate 20% (2014: 20%) 1.043.965 6.970.020

Tax effects of:
- Disallowable expenses 84.444 209.386
- Research and development deduction <625.216) <987.897)
- The sale of and exempt from tax

- (2.801.109)
Other (112.239) <100.965)

Tax exempt income (60.869) (176.846)
lnvestment allowances (4.326) (335.587)

Provision for income tax expense 325.759 2.777.002

(52)



(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otheıwise indicated)

32. Earnings per share

December 31, December 31,

___________________________

2015 2014

Net profit 4.894.067 32.073.100

Per 1 Kr. in nominal value Weighted average number
of shares 2.916.000.000 2,916.000.000

Earnings pershare (Kr.) 0,0017 0,0110

<53)
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(Convenience translation into English of fınancial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Vünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Şubsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otheıwlse indicated)

33. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

a.1 Credit risk management

As of December 312015, a portion of trade receivables amounting to TL 307731 consist of receivables
trom credit card shp and maturiiy up to 3 monts (December 31, 2014: TL 2.075.725).

At balance sheet date, the total amount of overdue receivableş and guarantees received for these
receivables is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

______ ___________________________________

2015 2014

Overdue for 1-30 days 572.376 1.042.697
Overdue for 1-3 months 1.816.139 752.450
Overdue for 3-12 months 2.336.793 900.411
Overdueforlyear 208.176 363.167

Total past due receivables 4.933.484 3.058.925

Secured ppion coveredpy arantees etc. 4.712.974 -_____ 2.838.595

Guarantees received for the overdue receivables that not reserved any provision:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Export insurance 4.712.974 2.838.595

4.712.974 2.838.595

a.2 Lipuidity risk managemeni

Ultimate responsibility belongs to the Board of Directors for Iiquidity risk management. The Board of
Directors has created an appropriate Iiquidity risk management for the Groups short, medium and long
term funding and Iiquidity management requirements.

The following table shows the detalis of the Group’s expected maturity for ta non-derivative financial
Iiabilities. Non-derivative financial Iiabihities is prepared on the basis of undiscounted cash flows and on
the earbest dates. The interest payments on the obligations in question were included in the following
table.
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(Convenience translation into English of financial statements originaliy issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

33. Nature and extent of dsks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Liguidily risk table:

December 31, 2015

Contractual maturitios
Total cash Less than 3 3-12

000kvalue outtlowsfl+Il) monthsfl} - sII

Non-derivative financial Ilabilities;

146.455.399
36.436.729

147.275.284 59.367.565
36.948.443 29.798.014

184.223.727 89.165.519

87.907.719
7.150.429

95.058.148

Bank credits
Trade payables

Total LiabiliUes 182.892.128

December3l, 2015
Total cash Less than 3 3-12

Contractual maturities — Book value - outflows Şfl months 111 months flQ
Derivatives financlal assets

Otherfınancial assets 723.984 31.951.425 7.693.500 24.257.925

Total assots — — 723.9M aliij.425 7.i.500 24.257.925

December 31, 2014
Total çash Less mana 3-12

Contractual maturWes Book value outflows (I+JJL_ months months Q
Non-derivative financial Iiabilities:

Bank credits 129.320.430 130.967.947 1 00.335.635 30.632.312
Trade payables 43.022.855 43.574.384 38.741.982 4.832.402

Tabi Liabilltles 172.343.255 174.542.331 139.077.617 35.464.714

December3l, 2014
Total cash Less than 3 3.12

Contractuai maturilles -- Bookvalue outflowsflifl monthsrn - monthsflfl

Derivative financial Iiabiiities

Olher fınancial iabililies 3.712.514 91.694.831 14.717.703 76.977.128

Total liabilitles 3.712.514 91.694.831 14.717.703 76.977.128

(57)



(Conveniencetranslation into English of financial statements originaliy lssued in Turklsh)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

33. Nature and extent of dsks arising from fınancial instruments (continued)

b.3.1) Credit risk management:

Group is exposed ta foreign currenoy risk, principaliy the USD, Euro and GBP.

The Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary and non-monetary assets and Iiabilities as of the
balance sheet date are as follows:

TL
December 31, 2015 Equivalency

(Funotional

_________________ _______________

Currency) USD EURO Yen GBP Other

1. Trade receivables 48,928 038 2.446.413 11.466 426 . 1.234,950 1.185
28. Monetary financial asseta (Cash, bank accounts ncluded) 1,758.864 545.632 30.945 . 16.116 739
2b. Non-monetary financial asseta - . -

3.0er . . . . -

4. Curent assota <1+2.3) 50.686.902 3012.046 11.499374 1.251.666 1.924
5 Trade receivables . . . . . -

6a. Monetary fınancial asseis
6b.Non- Monetary finandal assets . . .

7. Other
8. Non.currentassets (6+6+7>

9. Total assets (4+8)) 50.686.902 3.012.045 11.499.374 . 1251.666 1.924

10. Trade payables 19.543.786 5241.680 1.338.756 . 10.323 1.588
11. Financial liabilitios 46.316.025 3,164.905 10.222.915 . 1.076.432
12a. Other monetary liability . . . -

12b. Other non-monetary liabilities . .

13. Current IlabilItles <10+11+12) 65.869.811 8.406.686 11.561.671 1.086.756 1,688
14. Trade payables
15. Financial Ilabliitles
16a. Other monetary ilabilitles
16b. Other non.monetary Ilabilitles
17. Non.cunent Ilabilitios <14+15+16) . - . . . -

18. Total IlabIlitles (13+17) 65.869.811 8.406.585 11.561.671 . 1.086.756 1.588

19.Net asseUllablllty positlon of off-balance aheet
dedvauves (19a-19b) (158.624,940) (9.000.000) <36.000.000) . (4.200.000)

19a. Foreign currençy derivatıves accounted assets 52.266.000 . 13 200.000 . 2 400.000

19b. Foreign currency dedvatives accountod JiablIftles 210.890.940 9.000.000 49.200.000 . 6.600 000

20. Net foreign curTency posltton <9.18+19> <173.797.849) <14.394.540> <36.062.298) . (4.035.090) 336

21. Monetary ltems netforelgn curtency asseu <15.172.909) <5.394.540> (62,298) - 164.910 336
IiablJIty positlon <zl+2a+5+Sa.10.11.lZa-14.16-lSa)

22. Fair value of financial aasets for foreign cuuency hedge
23. The amount of Currency Hedgod portlon of assets . .

24 The amount of Currency Hedgod portion of liabilitles
25. Export -January 1 —December 31, 2015 158.134.867 12.554.587 34.573.167 . 4.128.680
26.lmpoft- January 1- December 31, 2015 94.596.257 29.081.396 4.476.291 1.108.310 33.572 164.707
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(Convenience translatlan Into English of financial statements ariginally issued in Turkish)

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December3l, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated>

33. Nature and extent of dsks arising from financial instruments (continued)

TL
December 31, 2014 Equivalency

(FuncUonal
Currency) — USD - EURO Yen - GEP Other

1. Trade receivables 51259.567 7.495 649 9.967.696 575.300 1.560.334 29.000
2a. Monetary financai asseis (Cash, bank accDunIs ineluded) 10.969.529 4.619.028 61.353 - 7.901 248
2b. Non-monetary financial assets
3. Other . - . . .

4. Current assets (1+2+3) 62.229.096 12.114.677 10.049.051 575.300 1.588.235 29.248
5. Trade receivables - - - . .

6a. Monetary financial assets
6b,Non- Monetary financial assets — - —

7. Other
8. Non-currentassets (5+6+7)

9. Total asseta (4+8)) 62.229.096 12.114.677 10.049.051 676.300 1.588.235 29.248

10 Trade payables 20.235 044 6326.069 1.922.464 . 35705
11. Fınancial I:abilities 53 650.327 9432.295 9.398 238 . 1.520.583
12a. Other monetary iability . . —

12b. Other non-monetary labilities .

13. Current liabilitles (10+11+12) 74.086.371 16.760.364 11.320.702 . 1.559.289
14. Trade payables
15. Financial liabilitles
16a. Other monetary liabilitles
1Gb. Other non-monetary ilabilitles
17. Non-current liabilihes <14+16+16) - .

18. Tota) ilabilIttes (13417) 74.056.371 15.760.364 11.320.702 . 1.559.259
19.Net asseviiabiiity positlon of off-balance sheet
derivatives (19a’19b) (108.688,920) (6.000.000) (33.600.000)

19a. Foreign currency derivatives accounted assets
- . —

19b. Foreign currency derivatives accounted Iiabilities 100.656.920 6,000.000 33.600.000

20. Net foreign currency positlon (9.18+19) (120.546.195) (9.646.687) (34.871.651) 575.300 28.946 29.248

21. Monetaıy iteme net foreign currency asseV
tlability position (=1+2a+5+6a-1 0.11.1 2a.1 4.15.1 6a) (11.857.276) (3.646.687) (1.271.651) 676.300 28.946 29.248

22. Fair vaiue of financial aesets for foreign curreney hedge - . . -

23. The amount of Currency Hedged poflion of asseta . - -

24 The amount of Cunency Hedged poflion of liabilitles . .

26. Export.January 1 —Oecember3l, 2014 168.674.406 18.733.627 37.961.014 . 4.435.419
26.import- January 1- December 31, 2014 123.240.916 42,924,393 9.006.589 137.600 26.535 117.822

Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk, due to the impact of rate changes of foreign currency
denominated asseis and Iiabilities translated into Turkish Lira the foreign exchange risk, foreign currency
position is monitored and limited by the analysis.

The following table details the Group’s USD, Euro and GBP exchange rates and decrease sensitivity to a
10% inorease in shows, Rate of 10%, to senior managers in the Group is the rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk, the rate of administration of the possible change in foreign exchange rates implies.
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10% change in USD rate
1 — USD net asseUliability
2- Hedged amount (-)
3- USO net effect (1 +2>

10% change in EURO rate
4- EURO net asseuliability
5 - Hedged amount (-)
6- EURO net effect (4+5)

10% change in GBP rate
7- GBP net asseUiiability

8- Hedged amount (-)
9- GBP net effect (7+8)

10% change in CHF rate
10- CHP net asseYliabiiity

11- Hedged amount (-)
12-CHF net effect (10+11>

(19.796)

(1 9.796)

19796

19.796

TOTAL(3 + 6 +9+1 2) (1.517.291) 1.517.291

- December3l, 2014
ProfıVLoss

Appreclation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency

10% change in USD rate
1 — USD net assetlliabiiity (845.398) 845.398
2- Hedged amount (-) - -
3- USD net effect (1 +2) (845.398> 845.398

10% change in EURO rate
4- EURO net asseYliability (356.695) 358.695
5- Hedged amount (-) - -
6- BURO net effect (4+5> (358.695> 358.695

10% change in GBP rate
7- GBP net assetlliability 10.409 (10.409)
8- Hedged amount (-) - -
9- GOP net eflect (7+8> 10.409 (10.409>

10% change in CHP rate
10- CHP net asseUliabiiity 1.113 (1.113>
11- Hedged amount (-) - -
12-CHF net effect (10+11) 1.113 (1.113)

TOTAL(3 + 6 +9+12) (1.185.728> 1.185.728

Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL> unless otherwise indicated)

33. Nature and extent of dsks arising from financial instruments (continued)

- December_3ÇŞ__,

_______

ProfWLoss
Appreciation of Depreciation of

- foreign currency foreign currency

(1.568,516) 1.568.516

(1.568.516) 1.568.516

70.923 (70.923)

70.923

98

98

(70.923)

(98)

(98)
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

33. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

b.32) interest rate risk management

Group is exposed ta interest rate risk due to Group’s borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.
Mentioned risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate distribution between the fixed and fioating rate
borrowings by the Group.

The Group’s interest rate sensitive financial instruments are as foliows:

interest position table

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Financial instruments with fioating interest rate

Financial assets 1.516.756 3805,171
Financial iiabilities 792,772 92.657

At the reporting date, 1 % decrease/increase in interest rates and ali other variables are held constant:

fas of December 31, 2015, the TL currency denominated interest rate is 1% points higher /iower and ali
other variables held constant, consists of TL 7.240 pre-tax profit / loss (December 31, 2014: TL 37.125).

34. Financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a fınancial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced saie er liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted
market price, if one exists.

The foliowing methods and assumptions used to estimate fair vaiues are used ta estimate the fair vaiue of
financial instruments:

1) Financial assets

The carrying amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary assets which are translated at year end
exchange rates are considered to approximate their fair values.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents are estimated to be their fair valucs since they are
shart term.

The carrying vaiues of trade receivables are estimated to be their fair vaiues.
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira <TL) unless otherwise indicated)

34. Financial instruments (continued)

2) Monetary Liabilitles

The fair values of short-term financial Iiabilities and other financial liabilities are estimated to be at their
fair values since they are short term.

Laans and
receivables Available for Amortized

(including cash and sale financial financial
December3l, 2015

________

cash eguivalents) aşsets Iiabilities SookValur Note

Financial Assets
Cash S cash equivalents 4.015.374 - 4.015.374 6
Trade receivables 96.257.454 - 96.257.454 8
Related party receivables - - - 7
Other receivables 1.745.566 - - 1.745.506 9

Financial liabilities
Financial Iiabilities

- - 146.455.399 146.455.399 18
Trade payables

- 36.072.771 36.072.771 8
Payables ta related parties

- 363.958 363.958 7

Loans and
roceivables Available for Amoflized

(including cash and sale financial financaI
December 31,2014

___________

cash eguivalents) — assets - liabilitios Book Value Nota

Financial Assets
Cash a cash equivalents 13.058.543 - 13.058.543 6
Trade receivables 122.604.418

- 122.664.418 8
Related pariy receivables 2.282 - 2.282 7
Other receivables 1.750.096 -

- 1.750.096 9

Financial liabilities
Financial Jiabilities - - 129.320.430 129.320.430 18
Trade payables

- - 42.982.766 42.982.766 8
Payables to related parties

- 40.089 40.089 7

Derivative Financial Instruments <Future contracts)

The Group concludes future contracts in foreign currency markets. The aforementioned future contracts
conciuded with respect to hedging in accordance with the risk management poiicies of the Company are
recognized with their fair value under “derivative flnancial assets” (if revenue) or “derivative fınancial
liabilities” (if expense) in financial statements since they do not provide appropriate conditions for hedge
accounting according to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Fair value of derivative financiai instruments are accepted as future cash income discounted to balance
sheet date or public market prices. Ali the financial instruments are carried as asset when their fair vaiues
are positive and as iiabiiities when they have a negative fair value.

Gains and losses sourcing from increase and decrease in fair values of derivative instruments which
cannot provide appropriate conditions for hedge accounting are directiy linked with income statement.
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
<Currency —Turklsh Lira <TL) unless otherwlse Indicated)

34. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy:

The table below anaiyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
leveis have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted> in active markets for identical assets or Iiabiflties that the entiiy can
access at the measurement date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
Iiability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as folJows:

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2015
Derivatives - 723.984 - 723.984

Total - 723.984 - 723.984

Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December3l, 2014
Deri’ati’ves - 3.712.514 - 3.712.514

Total - 3.712.514 - 3.712.514

35. Events after balance sheet date

None.
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Yünsa Yünlü Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi and lts Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2015 (continued)
(Currency —Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise indicated)

36. Contingent Iiabilities

Deductian of book value af şhares related ta subsidiary from the profit of the campany by Yünsa in 2010
because of the liquidation af its subsidiary SKT Giyim San. ve Tic, A.Ş. was criticized since there is na
pravisions allowing the aforementioned deduçtion in tax Iaws anda tax principal anda tax Ioss flne atan
amount af TL 1.096.447,67 and TLİ .644.671,51 respectiveiy is requested related ta the year 2010 by Büyük
Mükellefler Vergi Dairesi. Na payment shall be made since the aforementioned tax assessment is
considered ta be against fax laws and the case shall be braught ta Iaw. That is ta say1 lass related ta the
liquidation of subsidiary is a trading Ioss and deductian af the aforementianed loss from the prafıt af the
campany merely depends upon article 38 af Income Tax Law defıning net corporation prafit and 40/1 article
of Income Tax Law regarding general expenses. As a consequence, there is na inconvenience in deducting
af expenses and lasses, which is not banned by any laws not having an inappropriateness or collusion and
expased with respect ta ensure cammercial eaming, having a raot cause with trading activities. Lass which
is expased because of Iiquidatian iş cammercial and there is na provisian prahibiting the afarementianed
deductian either in Incame fax Law numbered 193 ar Carparate Tax Law numbered 5520. t specifıed in
pravisians of the afarementioned laws that it iş prahibited ta unjust use af dghts and prevented the unjust
intewentians against the use af related rights. Therefore, an uninhibited expense, having a raot cause with
the prafıt af the company, shauld be deducted fram profit of the company. Mareover, the Ruling dated
09.06.2011 and numbered B.07.1 .GIB.4.35.1 6,01-1 76300-225 is shawn as the basis far afarementianed
assessment by the Ministry af Finance. On the ather hand, the cantrary af the aforementioned Ruling 5
justifled in the Rulings af Ministry af Finance dated 14.4.2006 and 20.12.2006 and stated that losses in
question can be cansidered as expense in the determination of prafıt af the campany. Camments af Ministry
of Finance regarding the ssue are inconsistent.

Hence, it can be observed from the judicial decisians taken by both council of state and also tax caurts that
the losses in question can be deducted fram the profıt of the campany.

The occurring loss should be deducted from the prafit af the company since it cause a decrease in equities
af campanies pravided that the shares in subsidiaries remains warthiess asa result of liquidation. The
comment stating that “Iass sourcing fram liquidation af subsidiary cannat be recognized as expense”, which
is nat adjudicated by the legislatar precisely and cannat be stated in a financial manner, is an apinian
against the warding and spiriVnature af fax iaws giyen in the favar af Tax Administratian.

t is cansidered that it is nat required ta make e pravisian in acoordance with the “TAS 37 — Contingent
Debts and Cantingent Liabilities” standard since there is na liability saurcing as af the end af reparting period
because of afarementianed assessments made in an unlawful manner when ali the explanatians made
abave are taken inta consideration.
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